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Corporate Information

DEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
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HUI Yan Kuen
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YU Chi Kwong (Appointed on st April 2020)
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CHING Yu Lung

YU Chi Kwong (Appointed on st April 2020)
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HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
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CHING Yu Lung
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HUI Sai Chung
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HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung (Resigned on 31st March 2020)
CHING Yu Lung

YU Chi Kwong (Appointed on st April 2020)
HUI Sai Chung
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HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung (Resigned on 3 /st March 2020)
CHING Yu Lung

YU Chi Kwong (Appointed on st April 2020)
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BANKERS
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v
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2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 1 |
Bermuda
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BRANCH REGISTRARS (IN HONG KONG)

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSEEEAEREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. HUI Sai Chung, aged 73, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group.

He is responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the
Group's business strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales
functions of the Group. He has more than 50 years' experience in the plastics

industry.

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 71, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director
and a co-founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations
and administration of the Group. He has more than 50 years' experience in the
plastics industry and he was awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The

Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. NG Chi Ming, aged 55, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department, Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group
and the General Manager (Acting) of Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Trading Co., Ltd. He
is responsible for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology
and key accounts in the Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in
Textile Chemistry from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University's predecessor). He also holds a Master of Engineering Management
degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He joined the Group in 1988
and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has over 31 years'

experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.

Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, aged 43, is the Southern China General Manager of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and Guangzhou Ngai Hing
Hong Plastic Materials Ltd. and is responsible for sales and marketing of plastic
materials in Hong Kong and other cities in Southern China. He holds a Bachelor
degree in Civil Engineering from Queen's University, Ontario, Canada and also
holds a Master degree of Business and Administration from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology. He joined the Group in 2004 and has
over |5 years' experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr.
HUI Yan Kuen is the son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the
Company) and the brother of Mr. HUI Yan Kit (who is the senior management
of the subsidiary of the Company) and Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey (who is the
Director of the Company).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

|

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)
Mr. HUI Man Wai, aged 50, is the Business Development Manager of Dongguan

Coltec Plastic Trading Company Limited and is responsible for market
exploration and business development of Colour Masterbatches and Functional
Masterbatches for plastic industries in Southern and South Western China. He
holds a Master degree of Business and Administration (Executive) from City
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1997 and has over 23 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Man Wai is
the son of Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (who is the Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company).

Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, aged 46, is the General Manager of Dongguan
Ngai Hing Plastic Materials Limited and NHH Coltec Limited and is responsible
for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches
for plastic industries in Hong Kong, Guangdong and other cities in Southern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree with honors in Arts (Major in Economics)
from Queen'’s University, Ontario, Canada. He joined the Group in 2004 and has
over 20 years' experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI
Yan Lung, Geoffrey is the son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the
Company) and the brother of Mr. HUI Yan Kit (who is the senior management
of the subsidiary of the Company) and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (who is the Director
of the Company).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 69, is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho &
Company, Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree
in Social Sciences and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSEEEAEREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. CHING Yu Lung, aged 50, has been an Independent Non-executive Director
since 9th February 2009. Mr. Ching currently serves as the Chief Financial Officer
of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange"”). Mr. CHING also serves as the Independent Non-executive Director
of each of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 754), Shenzhen
Investment Holdings Bay Area Development Company Limited (formerly
known as Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited, stock code: 737), Termbray
Industries International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 93) and AMVIG Holdings
Limited (stock code: 2300), all of them are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He obtained a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Executive Master degree in
Business Administration from Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006, respectively.
Mr. CHING is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and member
of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has more than 28
years of experience in auditing, corporate finance and accounting. He is also a
member of the Audit Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. YU Chi Kwong, aged 52, is the Business Manager of an international
insurance company in Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor degree of Science with
Honours in Applied Chemistry from Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master
degree of Business Administration from the University of South Australia. He
started the career in plastics industry and had accumulated more than 20 years'
experiences in the industry, which included holding managerial positions in
various multinational companies for plastic materials sales and product marketing

in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

v

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 62, is the assistant to Chairman and she is responsible
for credit control of the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from The Open University of Hong Kong. She joined the Group in 1977

and she has more than 35 years’ experience in plastic materials trading.

Mr. NG Tat Ching, aged 65, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Ngai
Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic
(Dongguan) Co., Ltd. and Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai)
Co,, Ltd, and is responsible for the overall business operations of the above
mentioned group of companies. Mr. NG holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry
(Major) and Statistics (Minor) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
He joined the Group as a co-founder and an executive director of the above
mentioned group of companies in 1997, and has over 39 years' experience in
plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. NG has held several
key positions in various multinational companies for engineering plastic materials

sales and product marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr. WONG Chi Hang, aged 49, is the Director and General Manager of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales
and marketing in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in
Chemistry from The University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business
Administration from the University of South Australia. He joined the Group in

1994 and has over 26 years' experience in sales & marketing.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EERSEEEAEREE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Mr. CHAN Ka Ho, aged 47, is the Chief Financial Officer and Company

Secretary of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration
in Accounting and Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a
joint Master of Science degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science
from City University of Hong Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(“FCCA") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“FCPA").
He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder (“CFA") and a Certified
Financial Risk Manager (“FRM"). He has over 24 years' experience in auditing,
finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial, treasury, information

technology, administration and human resources management of the Group.

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 47, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour
Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai
and other cities in Eastern China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from
University of Toronto. He joined the Group in 1998 and has over 22 years'
experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr. HUI Yan Kit is the
son of Mr. HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the Company) and the
brother of Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey and Mr. HUI Yan Kuen (both are the
Directors of the Company).

Annual Report  FE# &
19720

-

BEEEAR M@

MEREE 475 DASB2HBKE
HRABWE - BRIEEHBEBRBRARZ
THERSL (SRR BM - THE
A B I T A Z AR University of Paris-
Dauphine Bt & X 2 R BRI H B 218
BHELTEM - WARBERSTAREETAA
CEAEE  BAEAGHRAEEREE -
ST R BRERERERTE
A BRRZE - BB RGHTHEERRA
“TOEKR BEXAKEHME @
B BB ITBRRANERER -

HABREE 475 DLEBREBRR
HBERARZERKE  BE iEME
RuwREeEg RIS THHERE  HE
RERRE BRARSRERNBHEEZ
XBEFE - RR—AANFMARSE
CEBEAMSGHERTHAER -+
FRE - FAREERFEBELE(RA
Bl ZEF )R F M AR E MFFARE
FE(MEREARFNER )N -



N S




>

D

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1T B R A 7 .

Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(“the Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year
ended 30th June 2020. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover
of HK$1,578,998,000 (2019: HK$1,852,680,000) and loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of HK$6,212,000 (2019: profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company HK$7,806,000). Loss per share for the year were
HK1.68 cents (2019: earnings per share HK2.1 | cents). To retain sufficient capital
for future business development, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) does not

recommend the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

During the first half of 2020, the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19)
pandemic swiftly swiped the whole world, leading to the further fall in oil prices
and plastic material prices remaining weak in the year, while the economic
stagnation in various countries could ultimately trigger a global recession.
Fortunately, oil prices have ceased falling recently, conducive to the stabilisation

of plastic material prices.

In the year under review, cities in Mainland China were locked down for nearly
two months due to the pandemic, bringing a halt to most of the domestic
economic activities in February and March. Then the situation overseas
deteriorated in March and April, which dealt a blow to the global economies.
Companies experienced operating difficulties, while the Group's customers, no
matter for domestic or foreign sales, were affected to different extents. Their
prudent order placements and low inventory policy directly affected the Group's
orders and as such both the inventory turnover days and the trade receivables
turnover days were lengthened by eight days and four days respectively.
Although economic activities in China gradually resumed to normal in late March
and early April when the pandemic was coming under control, the Group was
inevitably impacted despite rapidly imposing various remedial measures. For the
year ended 30 June 2020, its total turnover decreased by 14.8% year-on-year to
HK$1,578,998,000 (2019: HK$1,852,680,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

In response to the severe business environment, the Group acted prudently
in its order taking and imposed stringent cost control measures to counteract
negative influence such as lower sales amount and volume, and higher costs
and expenses. Overall gross profit dropped by 2.19% to HK$188,729,000 (2019:
HK$192,859,000). As the Group actively optimised product mix in the year,
reduced the proportion of trading business segment, enhanced the production
of higher margin products, and also effectively trimmed costs and administrative
expenses, its gross profit margin climbed |.5 percentage points to 12% from
the previous year. If excluding the fair value loss of investment properties,
overall performance of core operations improved compared to last year. Loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company was HK$6,212,000 (2019: profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company HK$7,806,000). Basic loss per
share were HK .68 cents (2019: earnings per share HK 2.1 | cents).

To reserve sufficient capital for business development, the Board did not
recommend the payment of a final dividend.

As the pandemic affected development in Mainland China during the first half
of 2020, the government focused on stimulating local consumption of the
domestic market in the second half of 2019. Also, as the pandemic was coming
under control in Mainland China and economic activities gradually returned to
normal in late March and early April, orders started to rebound. Working from
home in China and overseas had boosted demand in the food packaging and
basic necessity market, bringing more orders to the Group's colorants, pigments
and compounded plastic resins segment with main focus on the China market,
thus making it the outstanding performer among three major businesses in the
year. In view of the growing demand in Mainland China, the Group continued
to expand its domestic sales of food packaging products, and extend its reach
to daily necessities such as instant food and drinking water. Besides, demand for
high-end sanitary products grew along with new homes built in Mainland China,
boosting the Group' sales performance of related products. In order to secure
more new orders, the Group not only expanded the production capacity of its
Xiamen and Qingdao plants, but also brought the production technologies of
high-end sanitary products from its Xiamen plant to the Northern China market,
which had also started producing related products. Thanks to the Group's
appropriate strategy, turnover of the segment grew by 4.5% year-on-year to
HK$3 11,061,000 despite the unfavourable operating environment. Gross profit
margin rose slightly by 0.6 percentage point and profit before taxation also
increased by 27.6%.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Business Review (Continued)

In the year under review, as plastic material prices continued to fall and orders
from the Group's domestic automobile manufacturer customers declined on
China-US trade negotiations, sales of the engineering plastic business was
affected. As a result, the segment recorded turnover of HK$177,051,000.
The Group effectively controlled costs and the segment's gross profit margin
increased by 5.3 percentage points. Profit before taxation also grew by
[3.5% compared to the same period last year to HK$20,000,000. Apart from
maintaining its orders from the internationally-renowned brands, the Group had
also continued to enrich its product portfolio, utilise its business advantages,
focus on promoting higher margin products, and actively approach and engage
in discussions with end customers, all in a bid to explore new income streams
and expand its client base. The logistics industry experienced rapidly increasing
demand amid the pandemic. The purchase amount of heavy and commercial
vehicles in China also increased accordingly. By capitalising on its more than 50
years of industry experience and excellent reputation, the Group is set to secure
more engineering plastic orders relating to heavy and commercial vehicles and

broaden its existing customer portfolio.

The plastic trading business was adversely affected by the China-US trade
negotiations, domestic economic slowdown and falling prices of raw materials.
The outbreak of pandemic in the first half of 2020 had seriously hit the export-
oriented customers, making them more cautious in the placing of orders. As a
result, turnover of the business segment reduced by 18.4% to HK$1,090,886,000.
Despite these challenges, the Group continued to implement set strategies
and maintain close ties with existing customers. That plus the more mature
operation model of cooperating with internationally famous fast food restaurant
chains contributed stable orders to the Group. Besides, the Group strived to
provide materials for the developers of smart products, household goods and
high-end kitchenware, thus opening up new income sources. In addition, the
Group effectively reduced and controlled inventory, hence gross profit margin
slightly rising 0.5 percentage point during the year. Apart from continuously
implementing its stringent cost control measures, the Group will explore more
ways to expand income streams and secure higher margin orders in order to

maintain stable business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Prospects

Despite the gradual stabilising of oil prices, the stable prices of raw materials
and part of the Group's businesses being boosted by the domestic consumption
market recently, serious impacts posed on the global economy by the pandemic
that lasted for almost half a year will take time to recover. Besides, the pandemic
is not yet completely under control in the world and has even rebounded in
many places. As such, it is difficult to anticipate the recovery of global economy.
Given that there are still negative factors including uncertainties from Mainland
China and abroad, which impact the export-oriented clients in Southern China,

the management remains cautious towards future development in the long run.

In such a turbulent time as this year has been, the Group is more aware of
difficulties and risks while enjoying stability for the moment. Adhering to its
corporate philosophy of focusing on underlying business, the Group will keep
abreast of the market trends, prepare sufficient risk prevention and management
measures, including stringent inventory control, and maintain capital strength,
so as to meet the challenges and opportunities in tougher times. On top of
producing conventional home appliances and maintaining stable relations
with large toy companies, the Group has stepped up direct liaison with end-
customers, further allocating resources for signing up prospective end-customers
of sanitary products and actively enlarging its market share in domestic
consumption. Furthermore, the Group will continue to broaden its customer
base, open up more income sources and explore more markets and regions
with good potential. Meanwhile, it will also proactively approach international
brands and also develop high value-added and high margin products clients
such as kitchenware and smart equipment. As for cost control, the Group will
continue to implement stringent cost control measures, including the reduction
of administrative, distribution and production costs. It will also strive to enhance
overall administrative efficiency through the sharing of internal resources, with

the aim of achieving greater synergies in its operations.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Prospects (Continued)

In addition, new opportunities have been brought by the pandemic. Apart
from the large online consumption market, the working from home model will
become a new normal, driving the demand for smart home products. With years
of experience in the industry, the Group will accurately target new opportunities
to explore more new income sources. For example, it will proceed strategically
to develop high value-added and high margin products clients such as smart

home products to further optimise its product portfolio.

Coincidentally, this year marks the Group's 50th anniversary. The Group has
continued to move forward after overcoming ups and downs in the past. The
management team will continue to lead all staff to step forward and make
another 50 years of success! In face of the challenges over the past year, the
Group was able to achieve sustainable growth given the strong dedication of the
Group's professional management team over the past years and the diligence
and contribution of all staff. The Group, as always, will continue to make
relentless efforts and strive to achieve long-term and stable growth as well as

delivering long-term shareholder value.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow
and banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2020 the
Group has available aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$633,530,000
of which approximately HK$364,608,000 have been utilised and were secured
by corporate guarantees issued by the Company and legal charges on certain
leasehold land and buildings, investment properties and restricted bank deposits
in Mainland China and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see Notes |5, 16, |7,
I8 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements). The Group'’s cash and bank
balances as at 30th June 2020 amounted to approximately HK$126,094,000.
The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June 2020 was approximately 78.5%,
based on the total bank borrowings of approximately HK$365,377,000 and the
shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$465,322,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and contingent liabilities, and the
Company's contingent liabilities are disclosed in Notes 32, 37 and 3.1(d) to the

consolidated financial statements respectively.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally
denominated in US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations
and manages its exchange risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from

time to time.

At 30th June 2020, the maximum notional amount for the outstanding
settlement committed by the Group in respect of forward contracts in order

to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its operations as

Chairman’s Statement
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
As at 30th June 2020, the Group had approximately 634 full-time employees.

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive
scheme which is geared to the profit of the Group and the performance of
its employees, as an incentive to motivate its employees to increase their
contribution to the Group. The Group also provides social or medical insurance
coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be) to its employees

depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude to the Group's customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing
support, my fellow directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past
year. The Group will, as always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive
for its long-term development and the best interest of the shareholders aiming

at attaining more promising results in the coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29th September 2020
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements
for the year ended 30th June 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated

financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in

Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business and the analysis of the Group's
performance for the year ended 30th June 2020 as well as prospects of the
Group's business are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 9 to |5
of this Annual Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
There are a number of factors affecting the results and business operations of
the Group, some of which are inherent in the market and some are due to

external environment. Major risks and uncertainties are summarised as follows:

(i)  Volatility of economic climate in Mainland China and Hong Kong, which is

closely related to consumption thereto.

In order to mitigate the impact of a weakening economy of Mainland
China, the Group is continuing to expand the overseas markets. The
Group continues to take a cautious approach in steering the Group

forward, and recognises the need to sustain sales momentum.

(i) Credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their

obligations.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy. An ageing analysis of trade
debtors is prepared on a regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise

any credit risk associated with receivables.

The Group's other financial risks and uncertainties are set out in Note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
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BUSINESS REVIEWV (Continued)

Particulars of Important Events
No important events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the

financial year.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and supplement
the financial disclosures are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements” on pages 9 to |5 and 70 to 198,
respectively, of this Annual Report.

Environmental Policies and Performance, and Compliance with Relevant Laws
and Regulations

The Group takes its corporate social responsibility to heart, and is fully
committed to making a difference for its staff, the community and the common
good. During the year there are a wide range of activities and campaigns held to

treasure the staff, community and the environment.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries in
Hong Kong and Mainland China while the Company itself was incorporated in
Bermuda and is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). During the year ended 30th June 2020 and up to the date of this
Directors’ Report, the Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations

in the above-mentioned jurisdictions.

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and
Suppliers
() Employees
Recognising that human resources are one of the greatest assets of the
Group, the Group provides a variety of benefits, talent trainings and

development for employees.

(i) Customers
It is the Group's mission to satisfy different customers’ needs and
continues to contribute to the wellbeing of the public by providing plastic
materials which suit the customers’ requirements, which include their

social responsibility and sustainability.

Annual Report  FE# &
19720

¥EOEE)

EEEEHE

AAMHBEEERINK  YERETER
EEMEEEMH o

F 5 RASE R IRIEIR

AW aM B ENMBRRRRER
TR RIERAFREIE IS Al EFERE
RETOE 198 Bl A M BMKRME] -

RARBRERBANEBEREZRER

AEEBLREEHGER 2 OIRERE
B -HBEASE-—HN - REBEFE
N ARBRITTZHRERET -HER
RIGHEE -

o

AEENEHEEAARFANEERTE
MK EARET  MARTDEHEAR
EAMKLEEREEHARZMBRA
AR L™ - RBE-FT-FFERX
A=+BUEFEMEERESTRE A Y
B AREEET AR AEERHTA
MRERERER

HES  FEMMEBZSERANSHEE
KR
() 1ES

ANBERRAEERANEEZ
— AREREEBRESERM -
AT EER -

(i) FF
AEEHNEGAMETAEFPNE
kR EBFBEEEBRRETER
UmREEFERR  BEte&
ERAIFEER  UMRAQAZNZE -



NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 3 #E1THR A A

BUSINESS REVIEWV (Continued)

Relationships with its Key Stakeholders Including Employees, Customers and

Suppliers (Continued)

(i) Key suppliers
The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a number of
suppliers and taken great care to ensure that they share our belief in good
quality and ethics. The Group prudently select suppliers and requires all of

them to comply with our social and environmental responsibility guidelines.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 62.

At a meeting held on 27th February 2020, the Directors resolved not to declare

any interim dividend for the six months ended 3 1st December 2019.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Notes 28 and 39 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in Note |5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note

27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2020, the reserves of the Company available for distribution,
comprising the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to
approximately HK$68,85 1,000 (2019: HK$69,816,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may
not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus,
if there are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would
after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (ii) the
realisable value of the company's assets would thereby be less than the aggregate

of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and
there was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on page 199.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's

listed securities during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS
On 22nd November 2012, the Company has adopted a share option scheme

(the “Scheme"”) and terminated the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 5th December 2002. Under the terms of the Scheme, the

Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share

Options to subscribe for the shares of the Company subject to the terms and

conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

0]

(ii)

(i)

Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options
to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to

the Group.

Eligible participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive
director but excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries; and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an
offer to take up Share Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix
Il of the circular issued by the Company on [8th October 2012.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No
Share Option may be granted under the Scheme if such limit is exceeded.
The total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share
Options granted to each qualifying participant under the Scheme and any
other option schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options)
in any |2-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares

in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

(iv)  Option period
In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of
Directors (the “Board”) may in its absolute discretion determine, save that
such period shall not expire more than 10 years from the date on which a

Share Option is granted and accepted by the grantee.

(v)  Amount payable on application or acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of

HK$ | is payable on acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

(vi)  Subscription price
The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option,
(i) the average price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option or (iii) the

nominal value of the share (whichever is the greater).

(vii)  The remaining life of the Scheme
The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
between 22nd November 2012 and 21st November 2022 to offer the

grant of an option to any qualifying participants.

No Share Options have been granted since the adoption of the Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2020 are set out

in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. NG Chi Ming
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen
Mr. HUI Man Wai
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul*
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung*
(Resigned on 3/st March 2020)
Mr. CHING Yu Lung*
Mr. YU Chi Kwong*
(Appointed on Ist April 2020)

& Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

In accordance with clause 86(2) of the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. YU Chi Kwong,
who was appointed after the annual general meeting of the Company held on
21st November 2019, shall hold office until the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting (“AGM") and shall be eligible for re- election at the AGM.

Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, Mr. HUI Yan Kuen and Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul retire by
rotation in accordance with clause 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In order to comply with the code provision A4.3 as set out in Appendix 4 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), separate resolution should be set out for shareholders of the Company
to approve the further appointment of Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul as Independent

Non-executive Directors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHS

DIRECTORS (Continued)

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive scheme
is to link total compensation for senior management with the achievement of
annual and long-term performance goals. By providing total compensation at
competitive industry levels, the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain
key executives essential to its long-term success. Senior management incentive
scheme includes an equity component that is designed to align the long-term
interest of management with those of shareholders. The remuneration package
comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary bonuses and

incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim
to fairly represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various
committee meetings. The remuneration package represents annual directorship

fees.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employer within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION
Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), every Director

is entitled under the Company's Articles of Association to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and
liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution or
discharge of his or her duties. To the extent permitted by such Ordinance, the
Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs associated with
defending any proceedings which may be brought against directors of companies

in the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTER
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF T
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2020, the interest and short positions of each Director and
chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance ('SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) contained in

the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2020

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 3 #1TH R A A

Report of the Directors
EFERS

EERBRETRAERAAF
FHEEMAEREERAR
BEE R /AR

RZZEZZTFRA=+H KAARSES
REBITHRABRAR R REEREBE
B(EEABFMABGOITEFRER
BIEXVED) BRAARAB AR ERKE
BERNREESHERAFI2GFE S
& fit 2 Bty - AR RAE 7 2 #Eam ok
B ZRBETRAZ EMARERELT
ERXZRETU(RETADERAR
BN FRERERE T -

R-BE-EFAA=+HARATAEREE
0.10 BT ZEER

umber of shares of the Company beneficially held

RERA A2 ARMEA

sts  Corporate interests  Family interests ~ Other interests

EBER REER At

#
Mr. HUI Sai Chung Fausiss Long Positions # & 16,703,600
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong B KA Long Positions #f & 19,850,400
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen SFAREE Long Positions 1A —
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey FAERE Long Positions 1A —
Mr. HUI Man Wai AFXEEE Long Positions & 250,000

202,721,500 (a) — —
198,803,500 (b) - —
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Report of the Directors
EEEHS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Notes:

@

(b)

(d)

Annual
19720

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a
company in which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)).
In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,001 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr.
HUI Sai Chung. Mr. HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5
class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win

respectively.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which
Evergrow Company Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In
addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by Evergrow directly.

50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong. Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-
convertible redeemable preferred shares of no par value in Evergrow.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever
Win holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by
Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are
held by Mr. HUI Yan Kuen.

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Ever
Win holds a 45.1% interest (note (e)). In addition, 6,000,000 shares are held by
Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are
held by Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ |
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
(Continued)

(e)  The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which
held 196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2020, are as follows:

- Report of the Direct'ol;s
ESTHRE

T

EEREETBRAERA
S H AR AR B R B IR AN 2
BEE R /AR
(4&)

(e) EFEGood Benefit (AT T F /XA
=+ HHEERRA 196,721,500 B ) B&

R BEHERWT :
r Percentage
s of holding
BRESE
Mr. HUI Sai Chung FFHEHR S 4 4510 45.1%
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong BB S A 4510 45.1%
Mr. HUI Man Wai X B EE 360 3.6%
Others Efth 620 6.2%
10,000 100.0%

As at 30th June 2020, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting
deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to
an option granted to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the

said non-voting deferred shares.

RZEZZEFAA=+H  THESH
ERAEBBRERMERAFERERERT
R R - Mz A AW E E F Ngai Hing
(International) Company Limited AJ 888 £
MR RRERIE AR D < BBARKE -

f non-voting

shares held

EERDBA

Other interests

Hitb i z3

Mr. HUI Sai Chung FT IR S A 200,000 50,000 (i)
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong FFEI R A 200,000 50,000 (ii)

Notes:

0} These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

()  FZERM B Ever WinFF A ©

(i) FZEMRMD B Evergrow FF A ©
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Report of the Directors
EEEHS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION
(Continued)

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the
subsidiaries of the Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust
for the Group as at 30th June 2020, none of the Directors and chief executives
have any beneficial or non-beneficial interests in the share capital of the
Company and associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above:

(a) at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
or chief executives of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate; and

(b) none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under
the age of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or

debentures of the Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 30th June 2020, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not
been notified of any substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the Company's issued share capital, other than those of the

Directors and chief executives as disclosed above.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major

suppliers are as follows:

The largest supplier 26%

Five largest suppliers combined 72%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest
customers is less than 30% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th
June 2020 and therefore no additional disclosure with regard to the major

customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital)

had an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of
Directors and the Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the
group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal
controls and risk evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr. CHAN Dit Lung
(Resigned on 3/st March 2020), Mr. CHING Yu Lung and Mr. YU Chi Kwong
(Appointed on [Ist April 2020). The Audit Committee has reviewed with
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review
of the annual financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2020 with the

Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the

Company was held by the public as at the date of this report.
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The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers .t * #E FRK B & &HER S 15 BT

retires and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. EZ o AR EEEREREREERES
[BiE S -

On behalf of the Board REEFE

HUI Sai Chung FE

Chairman Rt ER

Hong Kong, 29th September 2020 AP M el O el
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures which serve as an important element of risk
management throughout the growth and expansion of the Company. The
Company emphasises on maintaining and carrying out sound, solid and effective

corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out
in Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “CG Code") throughout the year ended

30th June 2020, except for the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A2.|1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this
annual report, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company has not appointed any individual to be the chief executive. The roles
of the chief executive have been performed collectively by all the executive
Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The Board considers that
this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors with different
expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company's policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of
this arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when

it thinks appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of

the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transaction. The Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all
Directors confirmed they have complied with the required standard of dealings

set out therein during the year.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERELRSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors. Save as disclosed in the
biographies of the Directors on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship between Board
members. The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc
basis, as required by business needs. During the year, the Board held a total
of four regular board meetings, four ad-hoc board meetings and one general

meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set

B
ESRAR  EFRRHRRESHREAR

ARRNESF S EEHENRITMER
MEFRITEFTEIIFRNTEZNEA TR
FOE BRERFREI4ZCANERRE
BEREEEIN  EFTENE 2HILEER
B m% - RESHMEKR FEH 2
& %%fﬁuiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁuﬁﬁﬂ
EBLABRTEH NFRN EFgaH
BUOOREREEE SR  ORABHIES

out below: gEHER—ARERS - EESHKRLE
FHEFHBOAT
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings Attendance #%7l  Attendance B3R Attendance
Attendants ) flgrs HERE SFRE HEAY AZRE HERH™
Executive Directors: HITEE .
Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) TS A (2 E) 4 4 4 4
Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman — &TBI 504
and Managing Director) (B|FEFREFLME) 4 4 4 4 | \
Mr. NG Chi Ming RERLE 4 4 4 4 | \
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen TARESLE 4 4 4 4 | \
Mr. HUI Man Wai FXERE 4 4 4 4 | \
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey FAELE 4 4 4 4 | \
Independent Non-executive Directors: ~ BYHHTEE:
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul AELxE 4 4 4 0
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung Wﬁiﬁ%%i
(Resigned on 31st March 2020) (RZF=FF
= A=+—HFHF) 4 2 4 0 | \
Mr. CHING Yu Lung gkt 4 4 4 0 | \
Mr. YU Chi Kwong REXEE
(Appointed on Ist April 2020) (R-ZF_F#
A A—AEZF) 4 4 0 0
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’
attendance (Continued)

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across
the Board and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-
third of its members comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least
one of the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting or financial management expertise. The biographies
of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 6 to the annual report, which

demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term

subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent within the definition of

the Listing Rules.

Role and Function
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive
Directors and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its

approval. The principal functions of the Board are:

®  to establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company

and set the objectives of the management;

® to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment

proposals;
®  to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

®  to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls,

risk management, financial reporting and compliance.

Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on
a going concern basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2020, and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 30th June 2020, the members of the Board have selected
appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new and amended
accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2020, have applied them consistently
with previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made

are prudent and reasonable.

During the year ended 30th June 2020, the management provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision C.1.2
of the CG Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 59 to
61.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr. HUI Sai Chung, Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong,, Mr. NG Chi
Ming, Mr. HUI Yan Kuen, Mr. HUI Man Wai, Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, Mr.
HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr. CHAN Dit Lung (Resigned on 3 /st March 2020), Mr.
CHING Yu Lung and Mr. YU Chi Kwong (Appointed on [st April 2020) have
participated in continuous professional development by engaging in business
activities beneficial to the Company in their respective fields, including attending
seminar, workshops, conference and courses offered by professional bodies and
self-studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure

that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Continuing Professional Development (Continued)

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development. During the year
ended 30th June 2020 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
has arranged to provide the Directors with briefing on the amendments to the

Listing Rules and self-studying materials.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities
of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been
complied with the CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual

basis.

Director’s Nomination Policy
The Director's nomination policy of the Company was adopted by the Board
and became effective on [st January 2019 and the nomination committee of the

Company (the “Nomination Committee”) is responsible for execution.

Director Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee utilises various methods for identifying director
candidates, including recommendations from Board members, management,
and headhunters. The Nomination Committee may also put forward director
candidates who are not nominated by Board members. In addition, the
Nomination Committee will consider director candidates properly submitted
by shareholders of the Company through formal procedures set out in the
Company’s Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a

Director.

For filling a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board's consideration and approval. For proposing
director candidates to stand for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its consideration and

recommendation.

All director candidates, including incumbents and candidates nominated by
shareholders of the Company are evaluated by the Nomination Committee
based upon the Director's qualifications. While director candidates will be
evaluated on the same criteria, the Nomination Committee retains the discretion
to establish the relative weighting of such criteria, which may vary based on the
composition, skill sets, and experiences of the collective Board rather than on

the individual candidate.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Director Nomination Process (Continued)

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to the
recommendation of director candidates by the Nomination Committee to stand
for election at any general meeting. The Board will take such recommendations
under advisement and is responsible for designating the director candidates to
be elected at the annual general meeting of the Company and electing Directors

to fill Board vacancies.

Procedure for Appointment of New Director

Director candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal information
in a prescribed form, together with their written consent to be appointed as a
Director and to the public disclosure of their personal data on any documents
or the relevant websites for the purpose of or in relation to their standing for

election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment
of new Director and the biographical information (or relevant details) of the
director candidate, evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as
set out below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for

directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable director candidates, the Nomination
Committee shall rank them by order of preference based on the needs of the

Company and reference check of each director candidate (where applicable).

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder of the Company for
election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee shall evaluate such director candidate based on the criteria as set out
below to determine whether such director candidate is qualified for directorship
and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall make
recommendation to shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed

election of Director at the general meeting (where applicable).

A director candidate is allowed to withdraw his/her candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the company

secretary of the Company.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not
assume that they have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at the

general meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Procedure for Re-appointment of Director at General Meeting

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution and service
to the Company of the retiring Directors including their attendance of Board
meetings and, where applicable, general meetings, and the level of participation

and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and determine whether the

retiring Directors continue to meet the criteria as set out below.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall then make recommendation
to the shareholders of the Company in respect of the proposed re-election of

Directors at the general meeting.

Director Selection Criteria
The Nomination Committee considers the following qualifications are at a
minimum to be required of a director candidate in recommending to the Board

potential new Director, or the continued service of existing Director:
(@)  the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

(b)  proven achievement and competence in the nominee's field and the ability

to exercise sound business judgment;

(c) qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and

experience that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

(d) the ability to assist and support management and make significant

contributions to the Company's success;

(e) the contribution on diversity of the Board and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving diversity on the
Board:

() an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required of a
member of the Board and the commitment of time and energy necessary

to diligently carry out those responsibilities; and

(g) meet the “independence” criteria as required under the Listing Rules and
the composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the

Listing Rules from time to time (where applicable).

TARATR
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Director Selection Criteria (Continued)

Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria for director
candidate, although the Nomination Committee may also consider such other
factors as it may deem to be in the best interests of the Company and the

shareholders of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Nomination Committee was established on 26th March 2012 with written
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange.
The Nomination Committee consists of all independent non-executive Directors
and an executive Director. The composition and attendance record of the

Nomination Committee are as follows:

EE2H)
EETREN(F)
B EXFTR B BEIRAE B G IR

ZRAAERANTEARARARARR
REMNZ HEBEE  ERERAXREE
FREATEI 2REFTE -

REZEE

BR
REZBRR-F-——F=A=TxBER
BRSO B ER Y - REEE
SH2EBURATEER —ANITES
WAL HAER R RS T

Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HESBXH percentage
Attendants HEE SR HE=R
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEEE*E(ZEEEEE) 2/2 100%
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung BRILBESE A
(Resigned on 3/st March 2020) (RZB-ZFF=H=+—HFF) 12 50%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung TEIARE S A 22 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RENFEE
(Appointed on Ist April 2020) (RZB_ZFFOH—HEZE) 02 0%
Mr. HUI Sai Chung R ER S A& 22 100%
Role and Function HERBE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a
regular basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes; identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals
nominated for directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee would review
the Board’'s composition from time to time where Board diversity would be
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of services.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure,
size and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2020 to review the structure, size and

composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.

Board Diversity Policy
The Board has updated a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in

January 2019 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of

diversity on the Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service.

Independence

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive, non-executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong element of
independence in the Board. The independent non-executive Directors shall be

of sufficient caliber and stature for their views to carry weight.

Gender and age

The Company is committed to maintaining an environment of respect for people
regardless of their gender in all business dealings and achieving a workplace
environment free of harassment and discrimination on the basis of gender,
physical or mental state, race, nationality, religion, age or family status. The same
principle is applied to the selection of potential candidates for appointment to
the Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Skills and experience

The Board members should possess a balance of skills appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group, including the independent non-
executive Directors possessing professional accounting and other qualifications.
The Directors have a mix of finance, academic and management backgrounds
that taken together provide the Group with considerable experience in a range
of activities including varied industries, education, government, investment and

the professions.

Measurable Objectives
[ The Company should comply with the requirements on board composition

under the Listing Rules from time to time.

2. The number of independent non-executive Directors should be not less
than three and one-third of the Board.

3. At least one of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

4. At least one Director should be the professional or have intensive

experience of the industry on which the business of the Group is.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's composition, the
Nomination Committee considered that the requirements of the Board Diversity

Policy had been met.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised
on Ist January 2019 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee™) in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The

Audit Committee consists of all independent non-executive Directors. The
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EREES
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CHEBRBYIIFNTESMENK - FREE

composition and attendance record of the Audit Committee are as follows: AR ELEOT
Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HEERRH percentage
Attendants HE & S BIRE HE =
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) — B &EE(ZEELL/E) 3/3 100.0%
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung BRIKBESE A
(Resigned on 3/st March 2020) (RZFEZFF=H=1+—HFHF) 213 66.6%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung el 313 100.0%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RENEE
(Appointed on st April 2020) (R-ZFE-FFMA—HEZF) 0/3 0.0%
Role and Function AGRBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and
credibility of financial reporting, risk management and internal control procedures
as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of

the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the
recommendations set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given

below are the main duties of the Audit Committee:

(a) to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of

its resignation or dismissal;

(b) to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the

nature and scope of the audit;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)
(c) to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission
to the Board, focusing particularly on:
(i)  any changes in accounting policies and practices;
(i) major judgmental areas;
(iii)  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv) the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;

(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi) compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to

financial reporting; and
(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any

matters the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of

management where necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2020, the Audit Committee met three times, in
particular, to review and discuss the followings:

®  the auditing and financial reporting matters;

®  the appointment of external auditor;

° the establishment of internal control system; and

®  the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors

and all senior staff of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised
on 26th March 2012 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee™) in accordance with the requirements of the Stock
Exchange. The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors and an executive Director. The composition and attendance

record of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:
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Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
ijgg-%;ﬂgi percentage
Attendants HEE S BRE HE=R
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) &KL (ZEEL/E) 3/3 100.0%
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung PRIXBE ST
(Resigned on 31st March 2020) (R=ZF-FF=H=+1—HFF) 1/3 33.3%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung TEIRE SR A 3/3 100.0%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RERSLE
(Appointed on st April 2020) (R=ZF-FFMA—HEZ(F) 0/3 0.0%
Mr. HUI Sai Chung ARt SE A 3/3 100.0%
Role and Function AGRBE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive
Directors and senior management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their offices or appointment. It takes into consideration on
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and

responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the
performance and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives.
The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year ended 30th
June 2020 to review the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
and the remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management of

the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid

and payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

BB &

RER - NA BB KB K8 & AT
SHAREZERZMIFERRRYE - MAR
ARZERGENMENZEBERD
T~

HK$’000

TR

Audit services for the Group RASERME 2 BRI 2,130
Non-audit services including: FBEZRG B

— review of interim results —EHP RS 268

— taxation services for the Group — RANEBRME 2 TR 303

— agreed upon procedures on the Group's —AREEEFEENMIEERERF

annual results announcement 23
Total # R 2,724
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE TEERERS
Composition EED
A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate RARAMGXELRZEG([EEREE
Governance Committee”) was established on 26th March 2012 with written R E——F=A =+ ARETH
terms of reference in accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate RERBESDERY - P¥EERZESH
Governance Committee consists of all independent non-executive Directors. ERBIFNTESTMEL - HAKREE
The composition and attendance record of the Corporate Governance fERINE
Committee are as follows:
Number of
meetings
attended/Total Attendance
HEESBRE percentage
Attendants HEE S BRE HE=
Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) B E%kE(ZESELE) 22 100%
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung FRERRESC &

(Resigned on 31st March 2020) (RZBEZFF=H=+1—HFF) 12 50%
Mr. CHING Yu Lung [ES UL 22 100%
Mr. YU Chi Kwong RENEE

(Appointed on st April 2020) (R-ZFE-_FFMA—HEZF) 0/2 0%
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and
reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
reviewing and monitoring the Group's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held
two meetings during the year ended 30th June 2020 to review the corporate
governance policy in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on

corporate governance to the employees of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The Group
has formulated and adopted a risk management process which includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation, risk monitoring and reporting. At
least on an annual basis, the management of the Company identifies risks that
would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's objectives, and assesses
and prioritises the identified risks according to a set of standard criteria. Risk
mitigation plans are then established for those risks considered to be significant,

which include regular reporting to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information
to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the
occurrence of fraud and errors. In addition, the Group has established internal
control protocols and control self-assessment process on major operations.

Assessment results are submitted to the Board for ongoing monitoring purpose.

TARATR

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report
EERELRSE

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

For the purpose of enhancing the risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the Board and
the Audit Committee in ongoing monitoring and in performing the internal
audit functions for the Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation
of internal controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on a timely basis to ensure prompt remediation

actions are taken.

The Board has reviewed and considered the Group's risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate during the year. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Group are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstatement or loss.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Ka Ho (“Mr. Chan") was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on Ist January 2007. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Chan possesses
the necessary qualifications and experience, and is capable of performing the
functions of a company secretary. Mr. Chan is the secretary of the Board and
various Board committees including audit committee, remuneration committee,

Corporate Governance Committee and nomination committee.

During the year ended 30th June 2020, Mr. Chan has complied with Rule 3.29 of

the Listing Rules by taking no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.
Enquiries and suggestions from shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from Shareholders
may be put to the Board through the following channels to the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary"):

by mail to the Company’s head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory
Center, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number +852 2693 1663;

3. by fax at fax number +852 2694 0877; or

4. by email at info@nhh.com.hk.

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders.
Announcements are posted on the Company's corporate website http://www.
nhh.com.hk. Constantly being updated in a timely manner, the website also

contains additional information on the Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure
a high level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and

goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by
poll in all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to
shareholders together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The
Company has taken steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about
voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the constitutional documents
of the Company. The Board attends the Annual General Meetings to answer
shareholders’ questions. Poll results are published on the website of the Stock
Exchange and are posted on the Company’s corporate website shortly after the

meetings.

Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Report
EERELRSE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty- one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of
Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”)
at the Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory
Centre, 10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The
Notice (i) must include the personal information of the Candidate as required
by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and his/her contact details; and (i) must be
signed by the Shareholder concerned including the information/documents to
verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the Candidate indicating his/
her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her personal data.
The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after the
dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have
sufficient time to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate
as a Director without adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to
submit and lodge the Notice as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business

days prior to the date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March
2012 and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply
with the code provision E.|.4 of the CG Code.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”) was adopted by the

Board and became effective on [st January 2019.

The Dividend Policy is to ensure that the Board maintains an appropriate
procedure on declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the
Company. The Board endeavors to strike a balance between the Company's
shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management with a sustainable
dividend policy.

The declaration and recommendation of dividends is subject to the decision of
the Board after considering the Company's ability to pay dividends, which will
depend upon, among other things:

° the Group's financial results;

® the Group's cashflow, liquidity and capital requirements;

* the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

®  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

° the Group's shareholders' interests;

® the Group's current and future business operations, conditions, cycle and

strategies;

®  the general market conditions;

®  the shareholders’ and the investors' expectation and industry's norm;

®  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the

Group's lenders;

. statutory and regulatory restrictions;

. past dividend record; and

. any other factors the Board may deem relevant.
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EERELRSE

DIVIDEND POLICY (Continued) RE R ()

The Board has complete discretion on whether to pay a dividend and the form EEAERNBEREREIRMNRE RIK
to pay, subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda and the NzBs  WEEBFTEREATNEREAR
Bye-laws of the Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company must AAABERARZ ERBRE - XARE M
be approved by an ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company at ERIRAREMNBEERENREBAFRE
an annual general meeting and must not exceed the amount recommended by FUAEBABRRETUIE - B NS @BBRE
the Board. The Board may also consider declaring special dividends from time to EEMER ST - BRPEE SREK
time, in addition to the interim and/or final dividends. There is no assurance that BoN EEGIMA AR ZE BE IR AR
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given period. B o RARPEERBEEEMEEHEIR
MEMFESEIAIRE °

The Company shall review and reassess the Dividend Policy and its effectiveness KRB ET R E TR R B R &
from time to time. Any revisions to the Dividend Policy shall be considered and HAR - REBEMEHETHBERES
approved by the Board. 2EIRBIA o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 198,

which comprise:

®  the consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June 2020;

® the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

® the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then

ended;
®  the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

®  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a

summary of significant accounting policies.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BRI RS

OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30th June 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are valuation of investment properties

and provision for inventories.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

TARATR

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BET R E

EEEEE®)

Key Audit Matter BREFSEE
Valuation of investment properties KE YA E
Refer to Notes 2.7, 4(c), 7 and |8 to the consolidated financial statements BRHGEEBEHEME27 > 4(c) > 7

The Group's investment properties were carried at HK$155,292,000 as at
30th June 2020 with a revaluation loss of HK$3,564,000 recorded in the

consolidated income statement for the year ended 30th June 2020.

The fair values of the investment properties held by the Group were derived
using the income capitalisation method. An independent professional valuer
was engaged by management to assist in estimating the fair values of the
investment properties. Due to the unique nature of each investment property,
the assumptions applied in the valuations were determined having regard to
each property’'s characteristics. These valuations are dependent on certain
key assumptions that require significant judgement, such as capitalisation rates
including outgoings, passing rentals of the current leases and comparable

market transactions.

We focused on the evaluation of management's assessment on the valuations
of the Group's investment properties because this assessment involved
significant judgement and estimates and the carrying values of these investment

properties are financially significant to the Group.

K18
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B BRI RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BEREFISH@®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RANBTNMNEEFERENSERE

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

In assessing the reasonableness of management’s valuations of investment

properties, we performed the following procedures:

L We obtained and reviewed the valuation reports prepared by the
independent professional valuer. We evaluated the independent

professional valuer's competence, capabilities and objectivity.

®  We involved our in-house valuation experts in assessing the valuation
methodology used and the appropriateness of the key assumptions
adopted such as (“yields") by comparing them to publicly available data
and their knowledge of the property industry.

L We have also checked the passing rentals of the current leases adopted
by the independent professional valuer by comparing them to latest lease

agreements of the Group as at 30th June 2020.

° We assessed the reasonableness of the fair value of the investment
properties valued by independent professional valuer by comparing

against the market transactions based on our own market research.

We found the valuation methodology and key assumptions used by

management were supported by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT R &

BEREFISH@®

Key Audit Matter

HEETEE

Provision for inventories

Refer to Notes 2.12, 4(e) and 22 of the consolidated financial statements

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value, being

estimated selling price less estimated selling costs. As at 30th June 2020, the

Group's balance of net inventories was HK$292,804,000.

The estimation of provision for inventories involves significant management

judgement which is formed with reference to the price per latest sales

transaction, ageing analysis and the estimated net realisable value for obsolete

and/or slow-moving inventories.

We focused on this area because of the magnitude of the inventories and the

provision of inventories involved judgement and estimates by the management.

BRMGEEREZME2.12 ~ 4(e) K22
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FARETEE@E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RANBTUNEEFARETSR

Provision for inventories (Continued)

In assessing the reasonableness of management's provision for inventories, we

performed the following procedures:

* We obtained an understanding on how management estimated the
allowance of obsolete and slow-moving inventories. We evaluated the
Group's inventory provision policy with reference to the requirements of

the prevailing accounting standards;

®  We assessed the reasonableness of methodology and assumptions
applied to estimate inventories provision by inquiring management
and other relevant employees and comparing against historical sales,
reviewing utilisation pattern and historical inventory ratios (e.g. inventory

turnover days);

®  We observed physical condition of inventories during stocktake to
identify slow-moving, damaged, or obsolete inventories, and inquired
management if appropriate inventory provision had been provided for

those inventories;

. We reviewed the inventories ageing report and tested inventories
movements to validate the accuracy of the inventories ageing report,
which was the key report used by management to determine the

provision for slow-moving inventories;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT R &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) REEEEH@A)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued) BPMEFNAEEBRETSEGE)
Provision for inventories (Continued) R (&)
®  |n relation to management's assessment of inventories' net realisable s FHEEENMEENEINFEE-
values, we compared the selling prices used in the assessment to actual BMEERRAREFER SR FEL
selling prices subsequent to year end; and HEMBRNELEECEETHERE
%R

e  We tested the accuracy of provision calculation by performing e HREMEFTEUREGFERERNE

mathematical recalculation of the provision. T o

We found the assumptions adopted and judgement applied by management BMES - BREEMAZBRREL 2
were supported by the available evidence. ETEEMSRENSE -
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | #7175 R A 7

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT

OTHER INFORMATION

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We

have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting

process.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 3% &2

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats

or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29th September 2020
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E17H R A A

Consolidated Income Statement
A

For the year ended 30th June 2020
BE—F-_FTFENA=1THIFE

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
fit s FHR i
Revenue from contracts with customers BEFAMNZ WS 5 1,578,998 1,852,680
Cost of sales HEK A 8 (1,390,269) (1,659,821)
Gross profit EA 188,729 192,859
Rental income AL N 6 7,509 7,442
Other (losses)/gains, net Hth (E18),Wax — F 58 7 (1,668) 19,634
Distribution costs D KA 8 (70,799) (77,352)
Administrative expenses TH X H 8 (103,368) (109,764)
Operating profit 78 8 A 20,403 32,819
Finance income F R U as 1,109 1,043
Finance costs MBER (18,122) (19,165)
Finance costs, net MBER—FHE 9 (17,013) (18,122)
Profit before income tax R 50 B A 3,390 14,697
Income tax expense RIES W 10 (5,814) (3.419)
(Loss)/profit for the year RN (E518),/ %= T (2,424) 11,278
Attributable to: AT AR
Equity holders of the Company NI (6,212) 7,806
Non-controlling interests FEVE bl i 2 3,788 3,472
(2,424) 11,278
(Loss)/earnings per share for profit NN AR FE (L A
attributable to equity holders of ZBR(EB), &
the Company during the year (AZRREET)
(expressed in HK cent per share)
— Basic and diluted —ERREE 12 (1.68) 2.1

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with Lt AR S WS 3% FE B A BT BT 5 — PR B AE o

the accompanying notes.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FaaflaR

For the year ended 30th June 2020

BE-—FE-FENA=FHIFE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET
(Loss)/profit for the year RNE(EE), = (2,424) 11,278
Other comprehensive loss: HithdZ & 1A -
[tem that will not be reclassified subsequently to HETESREMOES
income statement: Waik2IAE ¢
Revaluation gain on property, plant ME - BERREERES
and equipment upon transfer to investment REMEZ RRIEER
properties, net of tax (Note 18) Weas (M45E 18) — 1,687
Fair value gain/(loss) of financial asset at fair value BRBEETAEM
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") PHBRNIBEELZ
AREEKS(EE) 186 (323)
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to HerwEFoEzRER

income statement: ZIEH :

Currency translation differences bE W =58 (17,625) (21,336)
Other comprehensive loss for the year NEHMARS ETE (17,439) (19,972)
Total comprehensive loss for the year REGZEBEERE (19,863) (8,694)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: mEBREEEER

— Equity holders of the Company — RAEIRR (23,397) (11,746)

— Non-controlling interests — IR 3,534 3,052

(19,863) (8,694)

=~

& OF Mo 5% 8 2 B B Y 5 — (F B3

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in

@
=4
12
o>
o>

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E17H R A A

Consolidated Balance Sheet
REBEEAER

As at 30th June 2020

R-E—FFENA=1H

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
{iFsd THET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - WEREE I5 105,307 118,278
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 25,167 —
Leasehold land and land use rights THE i &+ i (s R 16 — 16,000
Investment properties BEE |8 155,292 59,973
Intangible assets BV EE 19 — -
Financial asset at fair value through BARBERTT AHAM
other comprehensive income 2HWENTIEEE 20 1,863 |,677
Deferred income tax assets REEMIAE B 30 13,841 10018
Deposits and prepayments for property, ME - BERREEEE
plant and equipment and renovation costs BNRRIZS 7,951 1,503
309,421 307,449
Current assets REBEE
Inventories BE 22 292,804 319,251
Trade and bills receivables B 5 RN RN RIE 23 195,245 234,446
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits Hith YR« TR
KEE® 36,005 29431
Income tax recoverable AT [ 3518 372 560
Restricted bank deposits R H B RITFER 25 34,898 35,135
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHEH 25 126,094 93,601
685,418 712,424
Total assets REE 994,839 1,019,873
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to the DNEABRRELERER #E
Company’s equity holders
Share capital [N 27 36,920 36,920
Share premium A& A5 (B 27 62,466 62,466
Other reserves Hith 28 20,117 37,302
Retained earnings R 28 345,819 352,031
465,322 488,719
Non-controlling interests FEIZ IR 25,199 23,874
Total equity RSB 490,521 512,593
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Consolidated Balance Sheet
REEERER

As at 30th June 2020

R—F_FFENF=1H

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B = FHET F#T
LIABILITIES 8E&
Non-current liabilities FREBAE
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFIBAE 30 6,559 6,723
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 3,216 —
Provision for reinstatement costs 1E1E Al 884 —
10,659 6,723
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables B SRR KR EMNRR 26 87,257 56,979
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HMEMAR BERGETS
LiaiRE R 27,656 28913
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 3,803 —
Bank borrowings R|ITEE 29 365,377 406,977
Derivative financial instruments PTHEESMTA 24 1,246 74
Income tax payable JER IR 8,320 7,614
493,659 500,557
Total liabilities wmaes 504,318 507,280
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 994,839 1,019,873
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the FitiR G B E B ERE RN T — 0160
accompanying notes. B o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to |98 were approved by the

Board of Directors on 29th September 2020 and were signed on its behalf

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

Fr it B8 FFEE

Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
] HILERE FARETE

FOREIBEMNIHBEREREAETETN
SE-TEAA-TABHK TRERES

exE

=3
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E17H R A A

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FAERSER

For the year ended 30th June 2020
%t_t— = = -ﬁ-c/\ﬁ ‘/’Elﬁ-ﬁ-"—ﬁ

Attributable to the Company's equity holders

AARREEN
Other reserves
Bt
Financial
assets at
fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
reserve
&An Exchange
[l luctuation Non-
Share Share Capitd ~ Revaluation Afh2E reserve Retained controling
capital premium reserve e KERER EX eamings interests Total
Rx  BAEE AAGE  ERER AERR ER S RBar  HANER it
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
ThR T TR T TR T Tin T T
At It July 2018 RZT-)\FtA-A 36,920 62,466 (2.025) 7953 1310 50710 351,609 URI 533764
Comprehensive income Fald
Profit forthe period REEH - - - = = = 7806 347 1178
Other comprehensive income AftfakE
Currency translation differences EiZE - - - - - (21,006) - (330) (2133¢)
Revaluation gain on property, plant VER B
and equipment upon transfer EFRENZ G
to investment properties, net of tax Een - - - 1,687 - - - - 1687
Fair value loss of financil asset at VOCI -~ AR BB ARMRENE
WEEE DA ERER - - = = (1) = = (%0) (303)
Total comprehensive income Ereiea - - - 1,687 (23) (21,006) 7806 3052 (8694)
Transactions with owners LAY
Acquistion of interest in a subsidiary v Lol NG o
vithout change of ortrol (Note 36(b) ~ KEB(BH3E36(0) = = (1094) = = = = 10%4 =
Dividends paid to non-controling interests iﬁ‘ EEsER  RE - - - - = = = (509) (509)
2017/18 interim dividend paid fi=%-t/23-)\5§
Mﬁ B - - - - - - (7389 - (7384
Total transactions with owners EfEE RA4E - = (1094) = = = (73849 (39%9) (147)
At 30th June 2019 RZE-NERRZTH 36920 62,466 (3119 9640 1077 29,704 352031 BETA 512593
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 3% 1T

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FaESSPR

For the year ended 30th June 2020

BE—TE_FTFENA=FHIFE

Attributable to the Company's equity holders

AFRRERRS
Other reserves
AfER
Financial
assets at
fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
reserve
‘AR Exchange
EEA luctuation Non-
Capital ~ Revaluation Afp2E reserve Retained  controling
reserve reseve  MENEH Eil earnings interests Total

Bl EGEBR  KEBR  BERE  REEN  HEWER 8
HKSOO  HKSOOD  HKSO0  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOMO  HK§0
Tin TAn TR TAn TR TAn Tan

At It July 2019 RZZ-NEtA-B
Comprehensive income Gahs
(Loss)/proft for the period KE(BE) /4
Other comprehensive income Hfisa ks
Currency translation differences EizE
Fair value gai of fnancia asset st VOCI -~ BAABEAEMRENG
WETRAE M ERRE
Total comprehensive income GANEEE
Transactions with owners EEEPAY
Capitalinjecton fom anoncontrolling.~ FAEFREZTE
shareholder (Note 36(2) (P& 36(a))

Dividends paid to non-controling interests SR FIERT MRS

Total transactions with owners HfiREzR58E

At 30th une 2020 WZZZF47A=TH

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in iR & i o 1 B 7K B B BE BT B 5 — OF B
conjunction with the accompanying notes. & ©

@
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E17H R A A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
RERERER

For the year ended 30th June 2020
BE—TE_FTFENH=1HIFE

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 T FAT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEB 2 BB
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEEBFEYEY (ER)
2B 31(a) 121,257 (8283)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHBEBREH (2,155) (1,095)
Mainland China income tax paid BB A TS (6,660) (6,054)
Interest received AR 198 232
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEBPES (/)
operating activities ZFRE 112,640 (15,200)
Cash flows from investing activities BEXB2RER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE - BELRE (8,646) (8,100)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWZE  BEREE
and equipment IIECEN 31(b) 133 132
Prepayments for property, plant and M -~ BB RREHEEE
equipment and renovation costs TR K (7,720) (1,503)
Restricted bank deposits PR B HERITIE K (177) (152)
Net cash used in investing activities KREXBAERZ FH® (16,410) (9,623)
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
RERERER

For the year ended 30th June 2020
BE—F-_FTFNNA=1THIFE

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k53 THET FAET
Cash flows from financing activities BEXBH 2RER
Proceeds from bank loans FIGRITERK 211,045 518,634
Repayment of bank loans BRRITER (222,478) (465,451)
Decrease in trust receipt loans = FEBUR B ROR (26,118) (8,709)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests  FEIEHll#EzE 2 ¥ & 36(a) 980 —
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests AT T IR S s 2 AR S (3,189) (5,093)
Dividends paid SRR &N = (7,384)
Interest paid ERFE (17,382) (17,013)
Repayment of principal elements BERAEEELREHS
of lease liabilities (3,869) —
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing MEXEKH(ER) EE
activities ZEFERE (61,011) 14,984
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekReEHRZ
cash equivalents #hn ) 35,219 (9,839)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUzBEeRkREERE
of the year 25 93,601 107,459
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXRE B (2,726) (4,019)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZIRERIIRESEH 25 126,094 93,601

T
op

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction RS IR SR B 5K e BRI B 5 — OF B9

with the accompanying notes. A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

Annual
19 /20

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins

and engineering plastic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HMI |, Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on
29th September 2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issues by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties,
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value

through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards

RS B IS ER AR B EE

2 FESHBE#SE@)

2./

mREE(E)
mENTEBBY B IME LN
MBHmAFEEERETHRES
AEE - ENTEEEEER
AARENETHRBIEFRT
EE A - F K= E /A%
= EEMMENEE - SOr R H
REMBHRRBEARKRMMG
Boghs - EME4PE -

(a) FRAAZTER] - HER A

and interpretation

The Group has applied the following new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation for the first time

for the annual period beginning on Ist July 2019:

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2015 - 2017 cycle

BEMBREEN _—ZE—HFE
“EtFRRFENE

HKAS 19
BAGTERE 195

HKAS 28
BAGRTERIE 285

HKFRS 9
BRAMBREERE IR

HKFRS 16

BV BRMEERISE 1655

Hong Kong International Financial
Reporting Interpretation Committee
(“HK(IFRIC)") - Interpretation 23

Br(ERMHREREZES
— BB 235

EXRFIZBEZZE

AEBERE-Z2—N
FrA—HENHER
HEBERERANATHE
B A M ST AR
72

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS ||, Hong Kong Accounting
Standard (“HKAS") 12 and HKAS 23

HEBMBHREERNE IR - BEMBEREEE 115 -
FBGFTERE 125 REB T RIS 23 RERT

Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement (amendments)
SHRIEET © SRS (55T

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (amendments)

REZERBREERRAZ KPR (BRI A)

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (amendments)

BEAAHEZENTBIE(ETA)

Leases

HE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

FT S5 2 e e 1 2 B 38
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E17H R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EEETREB=ER@)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 HREEE)
(a) Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards (a) FRANFTZER - #2E R a9

)

and interpretation (Continued)

The Group had to change its accounting policies and make
certain adjustments following the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note
2.2). Most of the other amendments listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future

periods.

The following new standards and amendments to standards
have been issued but are not effective for the annual period
beginning st July 2019 and have not been early adopted:

Amendments to HKAS |
HEBGFELSE | RASET
Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8
HEAGHENE | KREESS
AEBIZE 8 SRAVERT

EDN:E

Definition of Material'

(b)

X ZE (E)

RER &8 B 75 s &
A 1657 1R (KT RE2.2)
AEBEEHNHETK
RAAFHETER - £
XK Z BE &
71 8RB T HI A R A
TRIYEERZE B
BHEIT &% B A RARR
HHELEAZE -

KT AE A HEIIER
BEEEZE=-FT—NF+A
— H R B B F B £ A
B FTE Bl R 21 2 Al 49 15
i REEF WA F IR

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?

HREIBERREEIFRE

3

Amendments to HKAS 16
HEBSTELE 6 RRER]

Amendments to HKAS 37
HEBEFERE 37 RAEE]

Amendments to HKFRS 3
HEBMBRELELE IRAOEET

Amendments to HKFRS 3
HEBVBREERZE IREET

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

HEBUBHREEAEINR
BB G EAEIHR R
BBV EERE 7 RAER]
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Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use
MR - BEMREEDTRERERMAERC

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

EBERAER-ETARMMKA:

Definition of a Business'

EHHER'

References to the Conceptual Framwork?

B SHERMFR

Hedge Accounting (amendments)'

rhestEE(BAIAR)!



2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

®)

have been issued but are not effective for the annual period
beginning st July 2019 and have not been early adopted:

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

HEBUBEREELSE 105 MBS
G| 28 5B ET

Amendments to HKFRS 6

HEBUHEREERSE 6 RAMEET
HKFRS 17
BRBUBRELERSE 175

Conceptual Framework for

Financial Reporting 2018
—F-\EFRBERENRSAER

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2018 - 2020 cycle

The following new standards and amendments to standards

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER AR B EE

FTESHBERE @)
2.1 HREEEHE)
(b) K TRBEREEIIER
EBE-FT—NEFE+H
— A B B B A

72T BRI K 1 2E Rl 8 1&
Al AL AELE R IR
A (&)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture®

KREEEEMENAHIAERRAZHANEELERTE®

PIEE=NAN

COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions?
2019 $r AV TE AR R S & B E R E 2 R 2

Insurance Contracts*

REE R
Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting'
BB RE OB SRR

Amendments to HKFRS |, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and HKAS 41°

BEEVBHREEN T N\FE HEBVBREENE |5 - EEUBRELNE IR -
:?:%ﬁ%@%ﬁZiEE&L ERMBHMELRNE 165 NEBGERE 41 FRAVEFT

) Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January M BT -_ZF—-—A—
2020 IR Y F 0 HA ) AR

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after st June 2020 @ BT -_ZFXA—

H B HY FF 3R AR A 3

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January @ BT -_—_f—A—
2022 R Y F S HA ) AR 2

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January @ BT -_=—F—A—
2023 R Y F 0 HA ) AR

®) To be determined ® TRMEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The Group has completed an assessment of the impact of the new
standards and amendments to standards on its results of operations
and financial position. However, none of the above new standards
and amendments to standards is expected to have a significant effect

on the financial statements.

Change in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases”

on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16
“Leases” retrospectively from Ist July 2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the year ended 30th June 2019, as permitted under
the specific transition provisions in the standard. The reclassifications
and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are therefore
recognised in the opening consolidated statement of financial
position on Ist July 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed
in Note 2.21.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in
relation to leases which had previously been classified as “operating
leases” under the principles of HKAS 17 “Leases”. These liabilities
were measured at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing
rate as of Ist July 2019. The weighted average lessee's incremental

borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on Ist July 2019 was 5%.

Annual Report  FE# &

19720

2

FESHHERE®)

2./

2.2

mREE(E)

AR E TR I FHTE R
HERNMETHANEE 2 RE
R BN EEITRE
It 3 R R K 1 R £ R TR
HTeHAKENE T 5]R
REKRERNTE -

B BEHE

M ERBRAB B BHS
AN | IR | AR B
ARBREZVE -

B EXCHI R BT A%
BEEBE-_Z—NLFEtA—H
BPRERABE BN EREERNE
l6SR[E ] - HEZERFE
BE G AR 21BN T I &
BINBE_T-NEF A=+
HIEFEZLERET - Bt -
HAERANELEZEFTHER
ABER-_Z—NFLtA—A8Z
HERE SRR RAER - 37
GETECRA M EE2.21 5 -

EAHEBEBMERELERE 16
W AEBAZAIREESE
FHERIE 7RI HE INRAIE
Algefe mBarlRTH
EafE - 2SHEARBUREK
HENRERE _E—-hE+LA
— B A)HEE A 2 AR R
BHBREFE - —T—hF+t
A—BHEESGEEANAEA
MEFHEEERF AT D
ZHA -



NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

For leases previously classified as finance leases, the Group
recognised the carrying amount of the lease asset and lease liability
immediately before transition as the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset and the lease liability at the date of initial application.
The measurement principles of HKFRS 16 are only applied after that
date. The remeasurements to the lease liabilities were recognised as
adjustments to the related right-of-use assets immediately after the
date of initial application. There were no remeasurements to the

lease liabilities upon the adoption of HKFRS 6.

(1) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used

the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

®  the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases

with reasonably similar characteristics;

o the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application;

and

. the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where
the contract contains options to extend or terminate

the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract
is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead,
for contracts entered into before the transition date the
Group relied on its assessment made applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC) 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains

a Lease”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(i) Measurement of lease liabilities

N

FESHHERE®)

22 EBEiBEKE(H)
(i) HEAGBZHE

As at
I'st July 2019
RZZE—NF
+tHA—H
HK$'000
FAT
Operating lease commitments disclosed —E-NAFRAZTHEERN
as at 30th June 2019 KL EAGE 9,156
Discounted using the lessee’s annual incremental BRHAITEERAAEANEE
borrowing rate of at the date of initial application TERAEEITHTIR 7,798
Less: NEE
Short-term leases recognised on a straight-line RESEERERERR
basis as expenses REHE (342)
Low-value leases recognised on a straight-line RESEERERERA
basis as expenses KEEHE (90)
Lease liabilities recognised as at Ist July 2019 —E-NFEHA—BBERN
HEAE 7,366
Of which are: HA 8 :
Lease liabilities - non-current FnBEEAR 3,654
Lease liabilities - current nBHEaE 3712
7,366

(i) Measurement of right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets for properties leases were measured at the
amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
any prepaid lease payments relating to that lease recognised

in the consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June 2019. Other

(i) 1EFEEEZGE
MEREZFREELE
REENEEaEZS
HEE UHRABR -
T-hAENA=1tHZ

right-of-use assets arise from leases previously classified as FEBEERBRMER

finance leases and were measured at their carrying amounts

immediately before transition at the date of initial application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Change in accounting policies (Continued)

(iv) Impact on consolidated financial statements

RS B IS ER AR B EE

2 FESHBE#SE@)

22 EirBENE(E)
(v) BB BRE S FE

30th June
2019 I'st July
As originally 2019
presented HKFRS 16 Restated
—ZE-hF BE —T-NF
~NA=1A IS HRE +HA—H
RRERY] EBRIFE 65 rE7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Consolidated balance HREBEREBEXR(FER)
sheet (extracted)
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E L 118,278 (3,587) 114,691
Leasehold land and land THE b K (s A4
use rights 16,000 (16,000) —
Right-of-use assets EREEE = 26,953 26,953
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAaRE = (3,654) (3,654)
Current liabilities RBEE
Lease liabilities HEAaRE = (3,712) (3,712)

The adoption of HKFRS 16 has no significant impact on loss
per share for the year ended 30th June 2020.

RN E B s R & A
FlI6HFRNEE_ZT-F
FRAZTHLEFES
HREETESERATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the

date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration

transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business;

. equity interests issued by the Group;

* fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a

contingent consideration arrangement; and

. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the

subsidiary.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable

assets.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation are measured
at either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRS:s.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IIF

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the:

° consideration transferred,

. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired

entity, and

° acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest

in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to
their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount
rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the
rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are
subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in fair

value recognised in profit or loss.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

(®)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to

conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without

change of control

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests and
any consideration paid or received is recognised in a separate

reserve within equity attributable to owners of the Company.
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AR B IS ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Consolidation (Continued)

(©

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. It means the amounts previously recognised in
consolidated other comprehensive income are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss or transferred to another category

of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

2.4 Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the

internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,

has been identified as the Executive Directors of the Company that

make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(@)

(®)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the

Company's functional and the Group'’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-
measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings
are presented in the consolidated income statement within
“finance income” or “finance costs’. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated income

statement within “other (losses)/gains, net”.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as financial asset at FVOCI, are included in

consolidated other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHBERBIE@®
POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 2.5 IMEHRE(E)
(c) Group companies (c) FEET A

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none AEEETHEER(Z

of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) HHERARBIRLE

that have a functional currency different from the presentation BEANE® )NIEE

currency are translated into the presentation currency as WAERRINEEE K

follows: R RV BARR AR
THARBBIIEEE

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are () BEEBEBEXRMY

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance K& E KA EIRZ

sheet; EEABEXRNAH

ZW T ERRE

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss account are (i) BaAERMT

translated at average exchange rates (unless this average B A R H®TF

is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative HEXRBE - RIE

effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in It 55 B &2 A

which case income and expenses are translated at the EEM B R B

rate on the dates of the transactions); and SBHEREEXR

BHYE  EUE
BT A RS H
GR35 B B E
KB R

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in (i) FrEHELEENE
consolidated other comprehensive income. REBREME O

W P EERR ©

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition WEEBIEBEBELELZE
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the BRAREEFBR
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange RIEBINEBERBZEER
differences arising are recognised in equity. BE WRKTEX#K

BE-EANMELEZRAE
R AR ©
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant influence
over an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of the Company

are reclassified to consolidated profit and loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the
Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling interests and

are not recognised in consolidated profit and loss.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to

the acquisition of the items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income

statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 40 to 50 years

— Leasehold improvements Shorter of
the unexpired

lease term or 5 years

— Machinery and equipment 8 years
— Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 5 years
— Motor vehicles 5 years
— Tools and moulds 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset’s
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount (Note 2.9).
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are

recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property
carried at fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount of the
property at the date of transfer is recognised in revaluation reserve.
Subsequent changes in the fair value of the investment property are
recognised in the income statement as part of other gains/losses. If
an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance
leases. Investment property is initially measured at cost, including

related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

2.8

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in
fair values are recorded in the consolidated profit or loss as part of a

valuation gain or loss in “other (losses)/gains, net".

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment

property and is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Intangible assets - Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired
technical know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Annual Report  FE# &

19720

2

FESHHERE®)

27 REWE A

2.8

ERERE  REUFHE
BRAREEIE  ArEER
MR BRI FE R & B 5
EENARME - 2AEER
BREMISERE  WEF
EREREENEE - Rk
RREAZERELFE - 1
BBMWBRER  NREEFBE
G ETTE - Pl ER T
SRTHERKMBRRERE
BADE - AREBEEHESRS
BEACHERIEM(ER),/
Yzs —F 8 e BB (A E R
GEY K

12 32 th 2N BE 5 2R 2R A8 77 A
mRANEEBZIAX HEER
SHFTER - TR AZERE
EZREEE FIAEMBEE
RRBRAREES 2 W B
Rz e BEAXH

HEREME 2 BEIRTEK
HEEMENEEETE  WER

BEBAHER

BB E — Rl A%
RiTAEABEAR TRREE
BREMOBM 2N - BA
s RPN UNE NS
AERZERATAERL - X
SEAET AT E A FE (R F)E
T8 -



NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the

impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

(a)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

= those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit

or loss); and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
(a) Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when

its business model for managing those assets changes.

(b) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(©

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or

loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are

solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash

flow characteristics of the asset.

= Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/(losses) together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as separate line item in the consolidated

income statement.
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TARATR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IIF

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments
in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in consolidated
income statement as “other (losses)/gains, net” when the

Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in “other (losses)/
gains, net” in consolidated income statement as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not reported separately from other

changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER AR B EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEBEm@)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2,10 BEE (&)

(d) Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk. For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the

receivables.

2.1 1 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair values. The method of recognising the resulting gains or
losses depends on whether the derivative is designated and qualified
as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. Assets and liabilities are classified as current if expected to
be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-

current.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for
hedge accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative
financial instruments are recognised immediately in the consolidated

profit or loss within “other (losses)/gains, net”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Inventories

2.13

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost
of finished goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less

applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-

current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

method, less loss allowance.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks
and bank overdrafts, if any. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

2.15 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables) are initially
measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest method.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax,
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown

in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

2.17 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

|2 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Borrowings and borrowing costs (Continued)

2.18

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.

Annual Report  FE# &

19720

2

FESHHERE®)

217 B REEHLF (&

2.18

EERBERUE  BER4E
REREERLEAR—BE
By ] B 32 DA VB EL T8 UE 48 3 88
ENEE)NEERA - A
REBEENRAN HEEE
AB ERZHETETERENHE
ERL - FIAEMBBERAE
EERARNIRETER -

BRI RIELFTZ8
AHEMHIE HBEE BN
BELERIE - HBERBBET
BR - EREMAHRENE
EEESTERNEERRE
ARSI - ERBI T - BB
DREEMA HIRmRERRE
Rt HERR o

(a) EHHEH
EHMEHRXHREAR
NAW B A F &S
BLEREEEBRBTBA
MERNEEBERH
EEMAEE FEEM
WG ERGTE - B
[E Bt @ A B 7% 0% B B 2
BT 353 BR /0 15 3% 5 B 5T 1
WMBERAMRR - W E
ABEATIRIEEBEAR
70 75 6 B S A A9 B R R
TELEM ©



2

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

2

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,

on temporary differences arising between the tax bases

of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the

consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax

liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial

recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not

accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or

liability in a transaction other than a business combination that

at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor

taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using

tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply

when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent

that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable

temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries,

except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of

the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the

Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E17H R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be

utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle

the balances on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a)  Pension obligations

2

The Group participates in several defined contribution

retirement benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme

is a pension plan under which the Group pays contributions

to publicly or privately administered pension plans on a

mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has

no further legal or constructive obligations to pay further

contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the

MPF Scheme, the Group and its relevant employees makes

monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s

relevant income with a maximum of HK$ 1,500 per month,

as appropriate, as defined in the Mandatory Provident

Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are fully and

immediately vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution

schemes for its employees in Mainland China. Contributions

are made by the Group on a monthly basis to those state-

sponsored retirement plans based on a percentage of the

relevant income of the relevant employees. The Group has no

further obligations for the actual payment of pensions beyond

its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans are

responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

retired employees.

RS B IS ER AR B EE

FESHHERE®)

2.19 ESEF

(@)

BIKEAIE

REE2EETRAEHR
REKSEHE RE
HRET BB RN & B A58
Bl 5B RELER
NASFAEEAENK
REBFTEELERRZE
KestE - REEEN
WM& EE -

REE -

REBRE B LR
MAEeFE((RER
FFED - REBERBESE
g rEEREEEEY
Iz E R E B % B iIRERR
BEFEIR TR B BRA
B2 hEsa sl
EBRABE AI1500% T
(BEERA#E) - ILEFHK
2HANHEETES

Ny

HHRBEARMKNES - A
SEIRRE T REHK
BAREHEHER NE
ERAREE AFHL
x5 HARBETERD
ZREBREKERKREF
IR AEHERR Lt
SN - I A AL A
BARBHNET  ZFK
T &M /0 2 & E BRI
BAREEBAEMEA
BRBTHRAESRE -

Annual Report  FE# &
19720

99



100

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E17H R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2

(@)

(®)

(©

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension obligations (Continued)

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits
expenses when they are due and are not reduced by
contribution forfeited by those relevant employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a

cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liabilities for annual leaves as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are

not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Option Scheme”). The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to
the fair value of the options granted, including any market
performance conditions; excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting conditions; and including

the impact of any non-vesting conditions.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER AR B EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEBEm@)

POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Employee benefits (Continued) 2.19 ESHEF (&)

(c)  Share-based compensation (Continued) () HRGRBEEZHHE

Non-market performance and service conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the specified
performance and service conditions are to be satisfied. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the

number of options that are expected to vest based on the

FI(4E)

FAFTEBZRBERH
TP ATE B S T %
HzBERESE KRR
HoBAMNLSELES
FHEARER  ZFH
MEBREmAERTEA
TRETFOESHE - RE

non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the HEB BEBRKEIED

revision of original estimates, if any, in the income statement, B2 RERRBIREE

with a corresponding adjustment to equity. RIEHRI F1TE 2 BR
%%ﬁ( B BRRMEE
TEWMAB)IIRKRER
MR 0 1 AE & 58 EERD

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)

and share premium when the options are exercised.

Mg RPRER

BREETER FF
RERMBFERETR
ZFERRABRA(HE
BB R AEE -

Under the terms of the existing Share Option Scheme of the BIEAEERTHERE
Group, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible Tl R R GHE - &

participants to take up share options to subscribe for the
shares of the Company subject to the terms and conditions

stipulated therein. No share options were granted or exercised

E2ANBRESER
2 /\%TKZWTWUE%ZK
Rl 2 BBARHE - N F

during the year. As at 30th June 2020 and 2019, there is no A B R ﬁﬁ 1 F fa]
share option outstanding. E% RiE- R_T_FTF
—E-AFRRA=T

EI W EAEFRITEZ
B HE

Annual Report  FE# &
19720

101



102

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | %% &2

TARATR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IIF

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d)  Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities of
bonus plan are expected to be settled within 12 months and
are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when they

are settled.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not

recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any

one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision

due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Annual Report  FE# &

19720

2

FESHHERE®)

2.19 IESEF (&)

(@) AT
¥AEEEEERDIRE
TR HEEREAE
R EML MEEL
SHEMEGEE  BIE
B W 2 TEAT 2 A B A
BRETAEE - B
B A BT
EH-EARKN ¥
SIES BN 2 2 E -

2.20 #fE

BERAEERBESZHME
ﬁliﬁﬂ—irZ?i&EiT&EEﬁ i
LB AR L B E %Iﬁ
ET iR B E%E
B REL A MG - BARK
EiBEET T ELEE -

bR E TRURE  BEA
BEEMZE &R 8
- DREREMEBER
BE - BER-—SEEAMNZE
A — B8 B 2 &R o] get
AR - RERERE -

BB AB AT R R IEHH
ENEEEENRXNRER
B BRMNERREETSHE
ERNREENARETEARR
HVRT 1 o BB B R 48 2= 1 48 A0
B ERER AT EFRX -



NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER AR B EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTBEREE@®)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2] Leases 22 HE
As a lessee TEAAFHA

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The new

policy is described below and the impact of the change in Note 2.2.

Until 30th June 2019, leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Group
as lessee were classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

period of the lease.

From Ist July 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is

available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of

the following lease payments:

* fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less

any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

®  amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual

value guarantees;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IIF

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2| Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

® the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease

term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value

in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing was

received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group,

which does not have recent third party financing; and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,

currency and security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER AR B EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEBEm@)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2] Leases (Continued) 22/ HE(HE)

As a lessee (Continued) TERAMNA (B)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: ERAEEERRBKAGE A
PEARBIEIATIER :

®  the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; © HEBBRVHRGTESSE

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;

° any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining

balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-

of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less. Low-value assets comprise IT-equipment and small items of

office furniture.

Some property leases contain variable payment terms. Variable lease
payments are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the

condition that triggers those payments occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2| Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

Extension and termination options are included in a number of
property and equipment leases across the Group. These terms
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing

contracts.

In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension
options (or periods after termination options) are only included in
the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or

not terminated).

As a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the consolidated balance
sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of

adopting the new leasing standard.

2.22 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Government
grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the

costs that they are intended to compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER AR B EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EESTHHEEBEm@)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition 2.23 Wm R

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised good to a customer, which
is when the customer obtains control of a good, has the ability
to direct the use of, and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits from that good. If the control of the goods and services is
transferred over a period of time, the Group recognises revenue by
reference to the extent of progress toward completion in fulfilling its

performance obligations during the entire contract period.

For the amounts of revenue recognised for goods transferred and
services provided, the Group recognises any unconditional rights to
consideration separately as a receivable and the rest as a contract
asset, and recognises loss allowance of the receivable and the
contract asset based on expected credit loss; if the consideration
received or receivable exceeds the obligation performed by the
Group, a contract liability is recognised. The Group presents a net

contract asset or a net contract liability under each contract.

Contract costs include costs to fulfill a contract and of obtaining a
contract. The cost incurred for providing services by the Group is
recognised as the costs to fulfill a contract, and is amortised based
on the progress towards completion of the service provided when
recognising revenue. The incremental cost incurred by the Group
of obtaining a contract is recognised as the costs of obtaining a
contract. For costs of obtaining a contract that will be amortised
within one year, the Group recognises it in profit and loss. For the
costs of obtaining a contract that will be amortised for more than
one year period, it is amortised in profit and loss based on same
progress towards completion as recognising revenue. The Group
recognises the excess of the carrying amounts of contract costs
over the expected remaining consideration less any costs not yet
recognised as an impairment loss. As at the balance sheet date, the
Group presents the costs to fulfill and of obtaining a contract, in the
net amount after deducting relevant asset impairment provisions, as

other assets.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23

2.24

2.25

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from sales of goods in the

consolidated income statement in accordance with below policies:

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has transferred
control over products to the customer, the customer has accepted
the products, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products, the amount of sales can be
reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity. Revenue from sales is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts. Accumulated experience is used to
estimate the likelihood and provide for sales return for the goods
sold at the time of sale. A receivable is recognised when the goods
are delivered as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required before

the payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount
as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised

using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group's and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders for final dividend and Board of Directors for interim
dividend.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 (Loss)/earnings per share

0]

(ii)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

®  the (loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity other

than ordinary shares; and

. by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus
elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and

excluding treasury shares.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic (loss)/earnings per share to take into

account:

° the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary

shares; and

. the weighted average number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the

conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market
risk (including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's
overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group's financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group.
The use of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures
is governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company in order to manage those risks. The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative

purposes.

(a)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China
with transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"),
Renminbi (“RMB") and US dollar (“USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency. The Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk from various currency exposures,

primarily with respect to USD and RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management has a policy to require group companies to
manage their foreign exchange risk against functional currency.
[t mainly includes managing the exposures arise from sales
and purchases made by the relevant group companies in
currencies other than their own functional currencies. The
Group also manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of the Group's net foreign exchange exposures
and has entered into certain foreign exchange contracts to
manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June 2020, the
Group had certain outstanding forward foreign currency
contracts to purchase USD (2019: purchase USD), details of
which have been disclosed in Note 24. Certain of the Group's
receivables, cash and bank balances, trade and bills payables
and borrowings were also denominated in foreign currencies,
details of which have been disclosed in Notes 23, 25, 26 and
29. Since the HK$ is pegged to USD, management are of the
opinion that the exchange rate risk exposure arising from USD

is relatively insignificant.

At 30th June 2020, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by
5% against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-
tax loss (2019: post-tax profit) for the year would have been
HK$ 1,253,000 (2019: HK$461,000) higher/lower (2019: lower/
higher), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on
translation of foreign currency-denominated non-derivative

financial assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IIF

3

BRI

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash
at bank. The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings carry at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk
whereas those carry at fixed rates expose the Group to fair

value interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing
fixed or floating rates should be drawn from time to time with

reference to the trend of changes in interest rates.

As at 30th June 2020, if the interest rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss (2019: post-tax profit) for the year would have
been HK$628,000 (2019: HK$399,000) lower/higher (2019:
higher/lower), mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
income on cash at bank net off with higher/lower interest

expense on floating rate borrowings.
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

(@

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to
its plastic materials which is dependent on the oil price. The
Group closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order

to determine its pricing strategies.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents and security investments with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers such as
trade receivables and other counterparty. The carrying amount
of these balances in the consolidated balance sheet represents
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its

financial assets.

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject to

the expected credit loss model:

= Trade receivables: and

- Other financial assets at amortised cost

Substantially all of the Group’s cash at bank and the restricted
bank deposits are deposited in major financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China, which management
believes are of high credit quality. The Group has a policy to
limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial institution
and management does not expect any losses arising from non-

performance by these counterparties.
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AR B IS ER AR B X

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

0]
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Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and

shared credit risk characteristics.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Impairment losses
on trade receivables are presented as impairment losses
within other operating expenses. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against

the same line item.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of customers and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced. The historical loss rates
are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables. With
the increased risk from the volatility of economic climate
in Mainland China and Hong Kong, the Group has
maintained a defined credit policy with tightened risk
profile and applied prudent policies to manage its credit
risk with its trade receivables that includes an ageing
analysis of trade receivables is prepared on a regular
basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk

associated with receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER AR B EE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued)
(1) Trade receivables (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 30th June 2020
and 30th June 2019 was determined as follows for trade

receivables:

3 BEREREE)
3.1 HEEEREZEE)

(d) 1EEEEE)
() B ZERZKE)

FEEE K=
TZTEFRA=T
AR=ZF—RER
A=+BMESE

Wk EEREETE
o
Expected
Gross credit
carrying loss rate Loss
amount FEHEE allowance
BREAE EEE EERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FTHET
As at 30th June 2020 R-BZEHF
~A=1+H
Individual assessment 1@ Bl 515 4,132 4,132
Collective assessment FEt G
Current R ] 138,699 0.23% 320
Within 30 days 308 21,903 0.36% 80
31 to 60 days 31-60 H 8,658 0.77% 66
61 to 90 days 61-90 H 1,665 2.39% 40
91 to 180 days 91-180 H 818 16.43% 134
Over 180 days Bi® 180 H 69 35.22% 25
175,944 4,797
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE B HRRM
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BIBERREE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BB EEEZEE)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued) (d) 1EEEEE)
(1) Trade receivables (Continued) () EBZENH(E)
Expected
Gross credit

carrying loss rate Loss
amount BHEE allowance
FRmAaE BER  EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET

As at 30th June 2019 R=Z—h#F

AA=tH
Individual assessment 1B 51 3 & 4361 4,361

Collective assessment et R

Current RE 161,896 0.07% 112
Within 30 days 30 A 34,087 0.12% 40
31 to 60 days 31-60 H 14,156 0.37% 53
61 to 90 days 61-90 H 1,615 5.17% 83
91 to 180 days 91-180 H 869 8.15% 71
Over 180 days #Bid 180 H 119 32.84% 40
217,103 4,760
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

()

Trade receivables (Continued)

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables as at

30th June 2020 reconcile to the opening loss allowances

as follows:

RS B IS ER AR B EE

MBRREE®)
3 HEEBREZEE)
(d) 1EEmEE(E)

() B ZERZKE)

R-ZZE-_ZTF XA
= TH®HE S ER
RGN B 18 B 4
FHEBERENY
BRIAE :

Loss allowance for

trade receivables

BEZRUAERRE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Opening loss allowance as at Ist july ~ REA—HH
FUBERE (4,760) (4,756)
Increase in loss allowance recognised FRRERDERE
in profit or loss during the year BB BRI (2,002) (126)
Write-off i 1,865 4
Currency translation differences M H E R 100 118
(4,797) (4,760)
Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented 25 REWFREE

as net impairment losses within operating profit.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

are credited against the same line item.

B2 REEEN
M R (B B 1B OF
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AR B IS ER AR B X

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(d)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash and
cash equivalent, bills and other receivables. Management
considered that these have a low credit risk and did
not make any provision for these other financial assets
at amortised cost based on the historical settlement
pattern of these other financial assets and the forward-

looking recoverability analysis of the counterparties.

As at 30th June 2020, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$364,608,000 (2019: HK$397,328,000).
Credit risk in connection with such guarantees is considered

to be minimal.

Annual Report  FE# &
19720

3

KRR EE#)

3.1/

M REREEZE ()

(d) 1=EERE(E)

(ii)

KB 5 K AR 5T 8 #Y
HEMH B EE

REHKANFTER
HitMBEEERRE
ReRkBReFH -
FE W 4 I oA R
WK ERER
B ERZENH
BEENELGEER
EWSE R SRl
14 AT g B D AT
HEERRE &
I ok % H IR

LRSI TR

BEEREAR

-
R=F-FENA=+

= akﬂﬂ?ﬁﬁf%ﬂ%“
RIZRITEEREA &
364,608,000/8 (= &
— L % : 397,328,000/
T 2R - BREALLEE
RZEERBITERX -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
the Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping

committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for
additions of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment,
settlement of borrowings, payment for trade and other
payables, and payment for operating expenses. The Group
mainly finances its working capital requirements through a

combination of internal resources and bank borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains
sufficient cash balances and adequate credit facilities to meet

its liquidity requirements in the short and long-term.
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AR B IS ER AR B X

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(e

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure
of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of
the Group. The Group also maintains a prudent level of
liquid assets and committed banking facilities to ensure the
availability of sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected
and material cash requirements in the ordinary course of
business. As at 30th June 2020, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$633,530,000
(2019: HK$586,659,000) of which HK$364,608,000 (2019:
HK$397,328,000) was being utilised by the Group.

The tables below analyses the Group's financial liabilities and
net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flow, including interest payments computed using contractual
rates, based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the
maturity date of bank borrowings with a repayable on demand
clause is based on agreed schedule repayment set out in the
loan agreements, disregarding the repayment on demand
clauses. Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
Directors do not consider that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretion to demand immediate repayment.
The Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in

the loan agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EE R I ERARMIEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 UREREE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BB EEEZEE)
(e) Liguidity risk (Continued) (e) WMEEZEMREE)
Within Between | Between 2
| year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FR —EWMFR ZEFRA B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THER THERx THERT
At 30th June 2020 NEZTERA=1H
Trade and bills payables & SRR K EMNZE 87,257 — — 87,257
Other payables and HiENRRBIRE R
accruals 14,021 — — 14,021
Lease liabilities HESE 3,941 3,295 — 7,236
Bank borrowings RIEE 367,480 = = 367,480
Total R 472,699 3,295 — 475,994
Between | Between 2
Within | year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FA —EWEFER ERER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TR TET
At 30th June 2019 RZZE—NERA=TH
Trade and bills payables B S BN A KEMNRE 56,979 = = 56,979
Other payables and Hih AR R TARE R
accruals 18,091 — — 18,091
Lease liabilities HEaE — — — —
Bank borrowings RITEE 409,452 = = 409,452
Total R 484,522 = = 484,522
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBREE@®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BB EEEZEE)
(e) Liguidity risk (Continued) (e) WMEEZEMREE)
The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial TRETASE AR
liabilities that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant EERENTESRE
maturity groupings based on the remaining period from & RREFEND A
the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. Al REHEEBGXR
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BRZE4REH A A F &
undiscounted cash flows, based on exchange rates prevailing at A ETHN ERA
the balance sheet date. BENRBERARCHIR
WERRESR  WRIE
REEBEXRABERD
Between | Between 2
Within | year and 2 years and 5 years Total
—FR —ZWER WELIFR FCR D
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FTERT THERT FTET
At 30th June 2020 R-B_FF A=1H
Currency forward BHRHEH
contract
— Outflow —5NR 158,026 75,153 — 233,179
~ Inflow —RA (158,100) (75.175) — (233,275)
Total Pk (74) (22) = (96)
At 30th June 2019 RZE—NERA=+A
Currency forward BHRHEH
contract
— Outflow —INR 46,470 30,980 — 77450
~ Inflow — KA (46,500) (31,000) — (77,500)
Total k] (30) (20) = (50)

122 19/ 20
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payments to shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank

borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total
capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance

sheet, plus net debt.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 30th
June 2020 and 2019:

RS B IS ER AR B EE

KRR EE#)
32 EBXEEEE

AEENESEERR 2K
EAKEEREEELE  URK
RIEHOGMBEMERSTE
ARENE - RARERSRED
BARERBIABIEE S KA

AEEEREEARARE  TRE
RERBENESFLRAE - B
THRBRABRELERE A%
ERIEA-CE-SRiER:0ke
B8 BITHRIESHY

— s

SRITER -

AEENABBELXEREE
AR o b RIRIREBSFRR R IA
BERGE - BB FEREE
ERERERRASER BE
AR I(MEEEEARE
RGBT HE ©

R-B_FEFER_F-AEAX
A=1+8 AEBEZzAEAELX
m

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

TER FAT

Total borrowings (Note 29) mEs(ME29) 365,377 406,977
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 25) W BE RIRE AR (FITE25) (126,094) (93,601)
Net debt B HRR 239,283 313,376
Total equity AR 490,521 512,593
Total capital AR 729,804 825,969
Gearing ratio BERXBGELE 33% 38%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

There was no material change of the gearing ratio during the year as

the Group closely monitors the overall capital structure.

3.3  Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the
balance sheet at fair value are required to disclose the fair value
measurements by level of the following fair value measurement

hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities (level 1)

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,

as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets,
including cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivable and
deposits and other receivables, and the Group’s current financial
liabilities including current borrowings, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals approximate their fair values due to their short

maturities.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at balance sheet date. A market is
regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or
regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the

current bid price. These instruments are included in level |.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is

included in level 2.

If one or more of the inputs is not based on observable market data,

the instrument is included in level 3.

There were no transfers of financial assets between level | and level

2 fair value hierarchy classifications.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

As at 30th June 2020, the Group's financial asset at FVOCI and
derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial
instruments. Disclosures relating to investment properties that are
measured at fair value are set out in Note 8. As at 30th June 2020,
the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
performed the valuation of the financial asset at FVOCI by the use
of discounted cash flow model based on the market conditions
existed at balance sheet date and business forecast provided
by management. Specific valuation technique used to value the
derivative financial instruments includes using forward exchange rates
at the balance sheet date to discount back to the present value. The
key unobservable data includes the interbank forward exchange rate

and the volatility of forward exchange rate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

RS B IS ER AR B EE

3 BRRERER®)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 RAAEEGE (E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for TRETEHE_ZT_TFH
the year ended 30th June 2020. =TBELEFEFEIESHMIA
Financial
asset at
FVOCI Derivative
RAREE financial
sFAEAE  instruments
ZEHKEL TE Total
MgEE SRMIA e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET FHER
Opening balance HR) 45 R 1,677 (74) 1,603
Settlements wE = (505) (505)
Gain recognised in other e H fth 2 TE e
comprehensive income R EE 186 — 186
Loss recognised in profit and loss 7 18 7 FE 58 B UK — (667) (667)
Closing balance AR G R 1,863 (1,246) 617
Total gains for the year included ~FRIFEHBENFE
in profit or loss for liabilities Bl PREEEERD
held at the end of the year, [E At (&EB), Wz — 5 ]+
under “other (losses)/gains, net” — (667) (667)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HREBEEm@
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 RAAEEGE (E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for LATRREBEZEZZE—NLFRA
the year ended 30th June 2019. =tHLEFERAEIBESRT

AmEB% -

Financial
asset at
FVOCI Derivative
BRARERE financial
T AE AL instruments
2 H W= 8 T Total
MBEE E@mIA PGk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R TET TAET
Opening balance AT 4 8 2,000 = 2,000
Settlements ©E = (1,769) (1,769)
Loss recognised in other R 2 W zx FE R A & 18
comprehensive income (323) — (323)
Gains recognised in profit  fE18 & FERR AU 2
and loss — 1,695 1,695
Closing balance HAAR a 84 1,677 (74) 1,603
Total gains for the year FREGNEENEE
included in profit or Bl - BIEEERERN
loss for liabilities held [ H Al (E518),~
at the end of the year, Was — FEE
under “other
(losses)/gains, net” = [,695 [,695
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 34 BHHBEENERE

As at 30th June 2020 and 2019, there were no financial assets or
financial liabilities which were subject to offsetting, enforceable

master netting or similar agreements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are

continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the

related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

()

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment with reference to the estimated periods that
the Group intends to derive future economic benefits from use of
these assets. This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will adjust the depreciation
charge where useful lives or residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or

non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and
actual residual values may differ from estimated residual values.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and
residual values and therefore depreciation expense in the future

periods.

4
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment,
leasehold land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations require

the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset values may not be recoverable;
(ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business; and (iii)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial
position and results of operations. If there is a significant adverse
change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the

consolidated income statement.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined
at each balance sheet date by an independent professional valuer by
reference to comparable market transactions and where appropriate
on the basis of capitalisation of the passing rentals of the current
leases based on the capitalisation rates including the outgoings. This
methodology is based upon estimates of future results and a set of
assumptions as to income and expenses of the property and future
economic conditions. Details of the judgement and assumptions

have been disclosed in Note 18.

Impairment of receivables

The loss allowances for receivables are based on assumption about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group's past collection history of each
customer, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key

assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(d).

RS B IS ER AR B EE

4 BARETHEFTRHE #)

(c)

(d)

1BEtREYRZ A EE

BEREMEZAREBEINE
— B4 E B {E R B FEFF
HENESEZA LR 2T IHER
5 EBEEBATHABEE
MIRBESREEEHERX
MERCERBERENRET °
BIDETZERERRERZ
CRPSEREL S ENEY P
BRZBE - BRAHIE KER
ZFHIBMIEE 18 R ER o

V.1 & 011

R Rz BIEEE T ER G
EHRBREEHEBEBRE 2R
e AEEFRABELZSE
BEEEEREFENBAZ
B DIRBESERFBAAEZIR
sk - WA TSR RS
REHRMAESEGE - FT{E
AR EZ/\EMEANFBR
BIEE3. 1 (d) R EE -

Annual Report  FE# &
19720

131



132

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | %% &2

TARATR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BRI

IIF

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

®

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(e)

Werite-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value
based on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net
realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
variable selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories are
recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and write-
downs of inventories is recognised in the period in which such

estimate has been changed.

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes
in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations
during the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax

provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. When
the expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets
and income tax charges in the period in which such estimates have

been changed.
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EE R I ERARMIEE

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZFEESAZBWAR

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7 ERE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Revenue from contracts with customers BEREH 2B/
Sales of goods HESm 1,578,998 1,852,680
The Group derived revenue from the sales of goods at a point in time. AEERE -—RHRRSKREHEE
B A o
Liabilities related to contract with customers BREFSHZEE
The Group has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with AEEEERATEREFRPEHZ
customers: BfE:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiBT FHT
Contract liabilities, included in other A E MR TR E A
payables and accruals ZEaaE 3,880 4,053
The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the THRETABREHEAREES LD
current reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. BERANKALHE -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Revenue recognised that was included SFAFVIENBEES
in the contract liabilities balance at Z BRERMA
the beginning of the year 4,053 6,613
There are no unsatisfied nor partially unsatisfied performance obligation B m—Fa A LR REHE
that has an original expected duration of one year or more. MARTERE D RTHKBLHOEF ©
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REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
plastic materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and

engineering plastic products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined
the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM
that are used to assess performance and allocate resources. The CODM
considers the business from the operations nature and the type of
products perspective, including the trading of plastic materials (“Trading”),
manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and compounded plastic
resins (“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering plastic products
(“Engineering plastics”) and other corporate and business activities
(“Others").

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business
unit that is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment
transactions are entered into under the normal commercial terms
and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parties.
Information provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent

with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of revenue and operating profit including corporate expenses,
which is in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial

statements.
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REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable
segments for the year ended 30th June 2020 is as follows:

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5
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EEEHZBWAR
DEE R (&)

BE T _ZFA=1+BHIHFE
BHAEECSRES YT 251
ESWERMT -

Engineering

Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EGB IRBR Hity AEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FERT FER FTER FET FET

Turnover B
— Gross revenue — D EbARHE 1,141,834 312,562 177,237 — 1,631,633
— Inter-segment revenue — D EEHEE (50,948) (1,501) (186) —  (52,635)

Revenue from external

customers SNER % P I a 1,090,886 311,061 177,051 — 1,578,998
Operating (loss)/profit e (E8R) EF (15,039) 19,765 20,920 (5,243) 20,403
Finance income B 75 W 2 116 25 — 1,109
Finance costs M5ER (15,682) (1,495) (945) —  (18,122)
(Loss)/profit before income tax B LA (&8 ), A (30,605) 19,238 20,000 (5,243) 3,390
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5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEF&EW82Z2WAR
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) o EBE R} (&)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable HE_Z-_ZTFA=THILFE

segments for the year ended 30th June 2020 is as follows: (Continued) RUEGEELERKE 225K

EHWERWT : (4)

Engineering

Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EGeB IRZER Hft A&E
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FER FER FHER
Other information: HMER
Additions to non-current assets 3E 7 &) & & 1 1
(other than financial (FRemI AR
instruments and deferred RIETHIEEEIN)
tax assets) 1,172 15,190 3,522 4 19,888
Depreciation of property, M - BRERERETE
plant and equipment 821 7,952 7,399 390 16,562
Depreciation of EREEERE
right-of-use assets 315 4,094 196 206 4811
Amortisation of leasehold land 185 1 #b f2 4 b {5 A 7
and land use rights 5y — — — — —
Provision for impairment GFERERERE — 558
of inventories, net 1,914 928 300 — 3,142
Loss allowance/(reversal of B S RKFER
loss allowance) on B, (#E)
trade receivables 1,977 117 (92) — 2,002
Fair value losses on derivative ~ $TA &R T &
financial instruments NABEEKE 667 — — — 667
Fair value losses on investment REWE N EEEE
properties 612 612 — 2,340 3,564
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REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZBEFEHZWAR
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) o E R @)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable RZZEZEFANA=tTHREHGE
segments as at 30th June 2020 is as follows: ERERKEZ 2 MEDBE
BT
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EGB IRBR Hity AEE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FERT FER FTER FTER FTER
Segment assets DEPEE 424,868 296,882 132,536 140,553 994,839
Segment liabilities HEEE (91,706)  (29,958)  (13,530) (3,747)  (138,941)
Segment borrowings DEEE (327,445)  (22,907)  (15,025) —  (365,377)
(419,151)  (52,865)  (28,555) (3,747)  (504,318)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable HEZZE—NFAA=THLFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2019 is as follows: RHELBEFREREE 225K
ENHERMT :
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
B9 E@B IRBH HAth ZANCE]
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000
FET FET FAET FAET FAET
Turnover S
— Gross revenue — DB E 1,392245 299,667 218,008 — 1,909,920
— Inter-segment revenue — D EFEHEE (55,143) (1,963) (134) — (57,240)
Revenue from SNERR P U ES
external customers 1,337,102 297,704 217,874 — 1,852,680
Operating (loss)/profit i (E8R) i F (12,857) 15,365 19,130 11,181 32819
Finance income B 75 e 104 934 5 = 1,043
Finance costs %% A (16,242) (1,227) (1,508) (188)  (19,165)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRI (B8 ),V A (28,995) 15,072 17,627 10,993 14,697
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5 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZEF&EW82Z2WAR

AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7 ERE )
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable HE_Z-NFAAA=THILFE
segments for the year ended 30th June 2019 is as follows: (Continued) RUEGEELERKE 225K

EDHEMMT : (&)

Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EEH IRZEH Hth REE
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
THTT THETT THETT TR TR

Other information: Hitn & #} -
Additions to non-current assets 37t E) & EE 18 AN

(other than financial (hemI AR

instruments and deferred RERBEEIN)

tax assets) 732 3,461 5,058 76 9,327
Depreciation of property, M - BRERZETE

plant and equipment 922 7,933 9,043 516 18,414
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEENE

assets - - - - -
Amortisation of leasehold THE T+

land and land use rights 1 P 2 i 8H 357 186 32 78 653
Provision for impairment GFEREREE —F58

of inventories, net 4,074 45 24 741 4,884
Loss allowance/(reversal of B S RKFER

loss allowance) on trade B, (#E)

receivables [ 14 10 10 (8) 126
Fair value gains on derivative THEe®IA

financial instruments AaEERE (1,695) = = = (1,695)
Fair value losses/(gains) KEMEAAEE

on investment properties B8 (W) 405 (1,364) —  (15050)  (16,009)

Annual Report  FE# &

138 19/ 20



NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER AR B EE

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 5 ZBEFEHZWAR
AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) o E R @)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable RZZE-—NFAA=ZTHREHGE
segments as at 30th June 2019 is as follows: ERERKEZ 2 MEDBE
BT -
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
B9 E@B IRBH HAith AEE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FAET FET FAET
Segment assets D ERE E 431,322 301,566 143,505 143,480 1,019,873
Segment liabilities HEEE (55,540)  (27.072)  (13,735) (3,956)  (100,303)
Segment borrowings DEEE (357,672)  (23275)  (26,030) —  (406,977)
(413212)  (50,347)  (39,765) (3,956)  (507,280)

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external
customers from Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2020 is
approximately HK$698,213,000 (2019: HK$950,763,000), and the total of
its revenue from external customers from other locations (mainly Mainland
China) is approximately HK$880,785,000 (2019: HK$901,917,000).

At 30th June 2020, the total of non-current assets other than financial
instruments and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong is approximately
HK$175,586,000 (2019: HK$179,050,000), and the total of these non-
current assets located in other locations (mainly Mainland China) is
approximately HK$ 118,131,000 (2019: HK$116,704,000).

AERNBEREM -HE_FT—
z

FRAZTHELEFEXRBREZ

ShEB B P U

#5495 698,213,000 7 7T

— T — L4 : 950,763,000/ 7T )

MARBEMME(EZELTEAM)
2 9N B R P UK &= 49 /& 880,785,000
BIL(ZF — JLF 901,917,000
JT) °

RZZEZZTFXA=1+H Ko
TAREEBIEEEINMIREEZ
ERB)E E 4 51755860007 T

—ZT— A4 179,050,000 7T ) ¢

iz EftE(EZ AT EANH)
2 EIEREEELAI118,131,000
BIL(ZZ — JLF 1 116,704,000
JT) °
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6 RENTAL INCOME 6 MHEEWA
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT TR
Rental income HE WA 7,509 7,442
Outgoings in respect of investment properties that generate rental income AEEHSBANKEYSE 2 HE
amounted to approximately HK$ 179,000 (2019: HK$362,000). R &£ 1790008 (=T — N
% : 362,000 7T) °
7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7 Hiu(EsE) s - FHE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Fair value (losses)/gains on investment BEMENRAABEER),
properties (Note |8) Wezs (Bt 18) (3,564) 16,009
Fair value (losses)/gains on forward foreign FIEEERB ZINERBIEH
exchange contracts held for trading ARBEEE) W
— Realised —-2ER 505 1,769
— Unrealised —REH (1,172) (74)
Government grant (Note) T4 B (B EE) 1,631 1,418
Net exchange gains INEW 2 FFE 724 481
Others Hit 208 31
(1,668) 19,634
Note: P 5T

Pursuant to Mainland China local government policies, the Group received
government grant amounted to RMB1,493,000 (2019: RMB1,248,000), equivalent
to approximately HK$1,631,000 (2019: HK$1,418,000), from Mainland China local
government authorities to support the operations in certain Mainland China regions

with no special conditions attached.
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EXPENSES BY NATURE
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=
=a

B IS ERaR B RE

8 BMEETZHAX

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Cost of inventories sold excluding HEFEXNACIREEERA)
manufacturing costs 1,310,278 1,561,561
Auditor's remuneration ZEET B
— Audit services — ZHIRH 2,870 2310
— Non-audit services — I EAR S 267 603
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% « &= &R EITE
(Note 15) (PffzE 15) 16,562 18414
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 17) EREEENE (FEI17) 4,811 —
Amortisation of leasehold land and land TH & 30 K2+ b {50 P R 8
use rights (Note |6) (BfzE16) — 653
Loss allowance on trade receivables (Note 3.1) B 5 R GKEBEAE (FIFE3.1) 2,002 126
Provision for impairment of inventories, net FEREEE —F5E 3,142 4,884
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BERERBZ KE
plant and equipment (72) (67)
Employee benefit expenses, including BERBAMZH(BEEZMSE)
Directors’ emoluments (Note |3) (FFsE 13) 120,935 31,149
Rental expenses of short-term leases in T REFRBMEER SR
respect of land and buildings 6,814 —
Operating lease rentals in respect of T REFZEEHERS
land and buildings — 10,450
Repairs and maintenance expenses HERRERY 3,411 4,038
Transportation and packaging expenses B RkBEMAX 25,298 26,137
Travelling and office expenses ERERPFAERE 7,119 9,141
Utility expenses KERT 12,653 13,782
Other expenses HitnE A 48,346 63,756
Total cost of sales, distribution HEKA « DHEAARR
costs and administrative expenses TR X HEE 1,564,436 1,846,937
Representing: (A
Cost of sales &R 1,390,269 1,659,821
Distribution costs 7 SRR 70,799 77,352
Administrative expenses TH X 103,368 109,764
1,564,436 1,846,937
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FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 HMBULENER
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Finance income: B Es
— Interest income from bank deposits —RITTFHMEBA 1,109 1,043
U <Y ey
Finance costs: WsER
— Interest on lease liabilities (Note 17) —HEAaBEIME (M 17) (334) —
— Interest on bank borrowings —HRITBEZFE (17,048) (17,013)
— Net exchange loss on financing activities — BB ER ZINER TR (740) (2,152)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, B (12.165)
Finance costs, net MG ER—F58E (17,013) (18,122)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 BiEXH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
[6.5%) on the estimated assessable loss/profit for the year. Taxation
on the Group's subsidiaries established and operate in Mainland China
have been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at
the rate of 25% (2019: 25%), other than a subsidiary in Dongguan which
was certified as High and New Technology Enterprises and is entitled to
a concessionary tax rate of 15% for three consecutive years from 2018
to 2020. This subsidiary is entitled to re-apply for the preferential tax

treatment when the preferential tax period expires.

Report FE#HE

FRMBRIBREFAGETERY
BAUBBREAD 2 T AMBAZT
—NE:BAZTARR)FEE
B PEABHBEIDRENEE
RAEBRABKLREEZHBR
AZAFERFRERRBENEZA
DZ_tTR(ZE-AF BAZ
THR)ZMEREFE  BRAKE T
URREZHMBARERERSH
BRCEWAIZ_E—NFE_ZT
—EFEE-FEOZCTAZER
R NI DR N5
STRERBHBHBAEERG L



10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement

represents:

RS B IS ER AR B EE

BIEZH#E)
AMAETHEZ LA -

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAT

Current income tax: REFHRIA :
Hong Kong profits tax BERENEH 1,519 2,113
Mainland China corporate income tax AR B b (b ZEFTIS B 8,946 4,892
Over-provision in prior years LEERERE (578) (362)
9,887 6,643
Deferred income tax (Note 30) EERIIE (P35 30) (4,073) (3,224)
5,814 3419

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate

as follows:

AEE A BT ADE M 2 T IE E R
FRAEANBHR IR EMAELZ
HEmiB BRI

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET TAET

Profit before income tax B 56 AT A 3,390 14,697
Tax charged at a rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) BHE165%(ZF—F -

16.5%) 5t 8 2 TR 559 2425

Effect of different tax rates in Mainland China PEAM AR E 2 8 667 152

Income not subject to tax AR Z A — (3,663)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes NEHIB 2 X H 1,420 828

Tax losses not recognised RIER TS EE 4,037 5,288

Tax concession (Note) gER (M) (581) (937)

Over-provision in prior years FEEBEREE (578) (362)

Unrecognised temporary difference RERGRETE 290 (312)

5814 3419
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 10 BIE @)

Note: BT

The Hong Kong Government has lowered the profits tax rate for the first Eﬂ BRARGET - —KREB M
HK$2,000,000 assessable profit of one of the subsidiary to 8.25%. Profits above A & H 2,000,000 7% 7T FE 5T B A E &
that amount will continue to be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. In addition, ﬂ HEGDRIKEE825%  HiZHEiA
certain subsidiaries in Mainland China were subject a lower profit tax rate at 5% on 2,000,000 78 7T #) & 7T 1% 74]“] B Rl AR
taxable income below RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,093,000), R 16.5% BT ot Hh - 653 A B 7 3 B
and 10% on taxable income on taxable income over RMB1,000,000 (equivalent J& A 7] & BR A0 WS &3 DA TSR 38 1,000,000 A
to approximately HK$1,093,000) but below RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to R (F{EXY 1,093,000 7T ) 89 3519 12 5%
approximately HK$3,279,000), and thereafter at a fixed rate at 25%. 8 = B - FERRBE UL SR PA = R 1,000,000

AR (EEH1,093,0008 7T )ETBB
3,000,000 A £ #& (55 {8 93,279,000 % 7T )
B9 42 10% B B - 1 1t 12 A9 2B 19
BIl4Z 25% 1) [E & T = - -

|| DIVIDENDS TR 3!
(a) On 27th February 2019, the Directors resolved not to declare any (@a R-ZETE—hNF-_A=-t++tHE
interim dividend for the six months ended 3 |st December 201 8. Tresm b BEHATHTE
E_T-N\Ft+-A=1+—H
LERME A &R EfRF EAR S o
(b) On 27th September 2019, the Directors resolved not to declare any by R-ZT—-hAEAA-t++tBE
final dividend for the year ended 30th June 2019. Tresk b BEEHATTE
EZFT-NFANA=THILEF
EEIREFRREBARE -
(c)  On 27th February 2020, the Directors resolved not to declare any () R-E-_TF-_AF-++HE
interim dividend for the six months ended 3 Ist December 2019. Frezt BEESRT0E

E-E-NAF+-_A=1+—H
EAREAEREM P HIASE

(d)  On 29th September 2020, the Directors resolved not to declare any (d) RZZE_TFHLA-t+HhBEE
final dividend for the year ended 30th June 2020. Fres bt BEZRTRE

EEIREMRERE -
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EE R I ERARMIEE

12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

12 BR(B1R) BF
E-%:3
SREA(ER) BHTIRARAR
FIE(E (B 1R),/ % FI A F B B

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit

attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

TEBBRZNEFOHEE -

2020 2019
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of NRIRE G (EE),
the Company (HK$'000) wA(FAET) (6,212) 7,806
Weighted average number of ordinary FRNEBTTERZ
shares in issue AN 19 28 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRER(ER),
(HK cents per share) BA(ZRA) (1.68) 2.11

Diluted

Dilutive (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 30th June 2020
and 2019 equal basic (loss)/earnings per share as there was no dilutive

potential ordinary share as at the years ended 30th June 2020 and 2019.

#E
RZEZZFRZZT-—NLFRA
=+H ARRUEEEEFTE 2
Tk Bt REE_T_FF
K=ZZE—NFAA=1+HIEMAF
B SREE(EE) BFESR
BREX(ER) B -

I3 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 13 EERAZH (B
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) EEHe)

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHEIT
Wages, salaries and other allowances T8 - & EAER 117,161 26,985
Pension costs RIKE AR 3,774 4,164
120,935 131,149

There were no forfeited contributions of mandatory provident funds
utilised during the year ended 30th June 2020 (2019: Nil) to reduce future
contributions. As at 30th June 2020, contribution of mandatory provident
funds totalling HK$ 142,000 (2019: HK$195,000) were payable.

REBEE-_TE-_ZFEXA=1THIF
&+ B A 42 R B A
BeHR(ZE—NF: &) K=
TTFANA=1H AFMERIE
SHB;E 142,008 T(ZF— N
£ ¢ 1950007 )BMES IR °
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(2) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the

year ended 30th June 2020 is set out below:

14

ES2NENERRSE
EEAEZME

) EFME
BE_T-_TF A=THL
FESUEEZIMOT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

FRES(TERRLAZANELR)

RUBEMXASRRHHE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director’s

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employer's ~ BERALF

and benefits contribution ~ AEMEAR

inkind  Discretionary to pension ES S

£ bonuses Housing scheme  EftEZHB
Fees Efb2E BRI allowance £2:) [BGE] Total
Name of Director Esftg e RENAE g EERE BASzHX Ehwme g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TR TR ThT ThT TER THR

Executive Directors HirEs

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) ~ sFIEER% A (£ ) 1,860 2,384 = = 8 = 426
Mr, HUI Kwok Kwong STEREE 1,860 2,384 = = 8 = 426
Mr. NG Chi Ming REHLE = 1,907 = = 8 = 1,925
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen FABEE - 1,300 - = 18 = 1318
Mr, HUI Man Wi FXBEE = 750 = = 18 = 768
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey STAREE - 1,092 — — 18 = 1,110
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RS B IS ER AR B EE

14 EEZBNERZREE
EBAEBCEHE #)

() EEM<Z(E)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

FRES(FERALAFENELT)

REREMXAAERHONE

Other

emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director’s

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employer's ~ HERAAF

and benefits contribution ~ FEMBAR

inkind  Discretionary t0 pension HEHRM

- bonuses Housing scheme  EftEZHH
Fees AR RfTEE allowance ExH [BUE] Total
Name of Director 3 g REMAR WA RERR Bfez#f  EROMHE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin Tin TR TEn Tén Thn

Independent BUHES
Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul Bk 250 - - - - = 250
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung (Note) Bixee 4 (Biet) 150 = = = = = 150
Mr. CHING Yu Lung EmEts 200 = = = = = 200
Mr. Yu Chi Kwong (Note) RERAE) 50 = = = = = 50
Total @8 4370 9,817 — — 108 - 14,295
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14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EEZABENERRSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EEABZME @)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) () EFEMZ(E
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the BE_Z-NAFAA=THIE
year ended 30th June 2019 is set out below: FEBUESEZMESOT :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
{FAEZ(TERAARAENBLR)
RERBTALRLHE

Other
emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director's

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Fmployers ~ HERARH

and benefits contribution ~ SEMBA

in kind Discretionary to pension HEBRE

10 bonuses Housing scheme  EMEZRIE
Fees Ef=zeh ETME allowance EEH [ Total
Name of Director ESY He RENHE OMZAR FEEE  BASER i Gl 6a &8
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

TER TER TER TR ThL TiET TER

Executive Directors YrEs

Mr. HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)  FFIt BB A (/%) 1620 2544 319 = 18 = 4501
Mr. HUI Kwok Kiwong STEREE 1620 2544 319 = 18 = 4501
Dr. WONG Chi Ying Anthory ~ ET2fE+ = 2374 206 = 14 = 2,59
Madam LIU Sau Lai BABST = 1,883 145 = 18 = 204
Mr. NG Chi Ming REARE = 1871 143 = 18 = 2032
Mr. HUI Yan Kuen STAERE - 1200 142 = 18 = 1,360
Mr. HUI Man Wai TXERE = 690 = = 18 = 708
Mr. HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey STARKE - 1023 = = 18 = 1041
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(2) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EE R I ERARMIEE

14 EEZBNERZREE
EBAEBCEHE #)

(a) EEME(E)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRER(PERAARZANBAR)
RERBN A EROHE

Other
emoluments paid

or receivable

in respect

of Director's

other services

in connection

with the

management of

the affairs of

the company or

Salaries, its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances Employer's  BERALA

and benefits contribution ~ FEMBAT

inkind  Discretionary to pension MEHRE

Exdi bonuses Housing sheme  EMEERE
Fees 0= EfTRE allowance Exy [iB3E] Total
Name of Director 32 e  REDHE fith FERN  EAEftR  EROEH 2R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL L TiEn ThL ThL TEL ThL

Independent BUFHES
Non-Executive Directors

Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul ffstE 250 - - - - - 250
Mr. CHAN Dit Lung RikERE 200 - - - - - 200
Mr. CHING Yu Lung RinELE 200 = = = = = 200
Total % 3890 14,129 1,274 - 140 - 19433
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BRI

IIF

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

)

(b)

(c)

(@)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Note:

Mr. CHAN Dit Lung retired as a director of the Company on 3lst March
2020. Mr. YU Chi Kwong was appointed as a director of the Company on st
April 2020.

No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2019: Nil). No
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the year (2019: Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any Directors
during the year (2019: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to Directors as compensation for the

termination of the appointment during the year (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to or received by third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to any third parties making available the

services of them as a Director of the Company (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
Directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such Directors during the year (2019: Nil).
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FAER_Z_ZFNMA—AEERE
RERREE -
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e kBT RUZAECE
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EERRIKEF
RAFERAREREEREH
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EFRIER
RAFEAL BRI RRIER
Em [ E F R E RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

®

®

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group's business to which the Company was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year (2019: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2019: three) Directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments paid and payable to the remaining individuals during the

year were as follows:

EE R I ERARMIEE

14 ESZNENEERSE

EEBAEZHNE ®)
(N EEEXE ZTHBEEH

®)

EXEDm

BT HEARA M H|RMEIS
BRI KEEALF
RS AR B W ERRATEM S
RARBZEBMARRZE
FERIAREETFHEEERX
REZEER S  HHAR

(ZZ2—N%F &)
BEREFHFMA L

AFEER - ERAMNZSHHA
T =(ZE—AF: =
U)REE HMEE2R EX
EAZoMHPEE BT &=
HEA TR EFE 2 HBFS
N

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET AT
Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind B « 285 R EWF| & 4,522 4,187
Discretionary bonus IS TEAL 200 1,548
Pension costs BAIRE AR 36 36
4,758 5771
The emoluments fell within the following bands: HEHFMETHHESEENR :

Number of individuals

AE
2020 2019
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) HEEE(BT)

1,500,001 & 7T - 2,000,000 7% 7T

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 87T - 2,500,000 87T
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 87T - 3,000,000 8 7T
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 /7T - 3,500,000 7T
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AR B IS ER AR B X

14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND 14 EEZABENERRSE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) EEBAEBZME®)
(g) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (e LEERFHMAL (&)
No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals AEBIWHER L A T(RIE
(including Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join EEREMER)XNMEE
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of any office REEMAKIER/RERAZ
in connection with the management of the affair of the Company BE(ZZE—NEF: &)

and its subsidiaries during the year (2019: same).

|5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 ¥ - MERERE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Machinery and office
buildings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
RELTH Mg equipment RER vehicles moulds Total
kT NEEE  BERRE  BLERE "B IERER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TATL TATL TATL TATL TATL TATL TR

At Ist July 2018 R=B-NFtA-H
Cost KA 120,020 62,435 205,595 21,017 8,747 2571 420,385
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (47.398) (43,686) (173421) (17,570) (7212) (1,754) (291,041)
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE - - (201) - - - (201)
Net book amount REFE 72,622 18,749 31973 3447 1,535 817 129,143

Year ended 30th June 2019 BE-3-A%E

RBETHLEE

Opening net book amount MR FE 72622 18,749 31,973 3447 1535 817 129,143
Additions #m — 4,062 6,032 508 791 177 11,570
Revaluation gain of property, n%  BER

plant and equipment on BT

transfer to REMEL

investment properties ESelies 2314 — — — — — 2314
Transfer to investment REMEED

properties (Note 18) (HzE18) (2698) = = = = = (2,698)
Disposals il — (53) = (1) = = (65)
Depreciation il (2667) (5954) (7.897) (1.224) (539) (133) (18414)
Currency translation differences [} 2% (1,955) (424) (1,074) (61) #) (19) (3572)
Closing net book amount MERERE 67616 16,380 29,034 2,658 1,744 846 118278

At 30th June 2019 RZB-AEXAZTH

Cost AR 116237 65,621 203532 20,848 8902 2,628 417,768
Accumulated depreciation REE (48,621) (49.241) (174297) (18,190) (7,158) (1,782) (299,2689)
Accumulated impairment ZitAE - - (201) = = = (201
Net book amount REFE 67616 16,380 29,034 2,658 1,744 846 118278
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S IBHmRMEE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15 Y% BMERSRE @)
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Machinery and office
improvements and equipment Motor Tools and

HE equipment RER vehicles moulds Total

NEEE HERRE BOERE RE  IER#ER AR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR TR TER

Year ended 30th June 2020 BE-B-%fF
ARETRLEE
Opening net book amount BREHE
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RpEANBREE
(Note 2.2) £ 165 (M22)
Restated opening net book amount  Ei I BRI FEES|
Addtions gy
Disposals e
Depreciation ik

Currency translation differences EXER

Closing net book amount BEREE
At 30th June 2020 RZBZZEXE=1A
Cost KA
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
Net book amount REFE
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I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation expense of HK$ 13,001,000 (2019: HK$14,516,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$ 133,000 (2019: HK$133,000) in distribution
costs and HK$3,428,000 (2019: HK$3,765,000) in administrative expenses.

As at 30th June 2020, the net book amount of property, plant and
equipment pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted
to approximately HK$34,992,000 (2019: HK$38,616,000).

|6 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent

prepaid operating lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed

15

M¥E - BERSZE®)

FEEM 13,001,008 T(ZE—N
& 11451600074 7T ) B B 1E 1E
R AR 0 133,000 T(Z & — N
1 133,000 ) B BIEE D HK
7N 23,428,000 (= F — L& -
3,765,000 0) B BIEEITE T H o

RZEZZTFA=1+H ~&H
AR T )5 1B 48 38 49 34,992,000 7% 7T( =
T — L 386160008 T ) 2 W
¥ BELRIEDEBTRIT A
REFRGETREE -

ME L% £ o fE A

AEEREELT MR T ERE L
BafREMNEEEAERE - £

as follows: HEREDITIT -

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT TET

At beginning of the year F9 16,000 18,399
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2) HNE BB WmEER

165k (ME2.2) (16,000) —

Transfer to investment properties (Note |8) REMEE L (5 18) — (1,052)

Amortisation B3 - (653)

Currency translation differences ME W =8 — (694)

At end of the year FAR — 16,000

As at 30th June 2019, the net book amount of leasehold land and land use
rights pledged as security for the Group’s banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$2,948,000.

Annual Report  FE# &
19720

R—ZFE—NALF~A=+RH - HE&
T R LR EREFEELD
2,948,000 L EH A T IRT + AR
EEMBRITEE -



NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

|7 LEASES 17

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet

RS B IS ER AR B EE

HE

A RUAEERRAAZBE
2R -

() REEEERBHXRERZ

HE

As at 30th June As at st July

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET

Right of use assets EREEE
Leasehold land and land use rights THE b} + b (E A #E 18,359 19,587
Properties LES 6,808 7,366
25,167 26,953

In the previous year, the Group only recognised leasehold land
in relation to leases that were classified as “finance leases” under
HKAS 17 “Leases”. The assets were presented in property, plant
and equipment (Note 15). Leasehold land and land use rights that
were classified as “operating lease” under HKAS 17 “Leases” were

presented in Note |6.

For adjustments recognised on adoption of HKFRS [6 on Ist July
2019, please refer to Note 2.2.

As at 30th June 2020, the net book amount of leasehold land and
land use rights pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$4,406,000.

EF ARERREFE S ER
FI7TRBE I DEAIBEREZ
HEEEREELH - EEZI A
M s RREEEIS)
MRBEEB G EAE 175 HE ]
DHRABIREHE I cHEL R L
HfE R 2 DIRHIEE 16

BRER-_T—-—NAFLtHA—HBRER®A
FRMBREENF 6 SRER A
B BF2RHME22-

R-_ZE_ZTFEXA=+H HE
T R LR EREFEED
4,406,000 L EHH TIRT - B
EEMBRITEE -

As at 30th June As at st July

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFExT AT

Lease liabilities HEEE
Non-current IERE) 3,216 3,654
Current mE 3,803 3,712
7,019 7,366
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|7 LEASES (Continued) 17 H&E @
(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement (i) REENZKERZHE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Depreciation weE
Included in cost of sales BEEHEXR 3,786 =
Included in administrative expenses BRETEE S 1,025 —
4,811 —
Interest expenses included in AR E R
finance cost (Note 9) FEFZ(MEE9) 334 —
Expense relating to leases of short-term FHREHREEBEECHEE
and low-value leases " & A 6,814 —
(iii) The Group'’s leasing activities and how these are accounted (i) FEBZHEZTHREAK
for y.2-
The Group leases various offices and factory. Rental contracts are AEBEEZERAERK
typically made for fixed periods of | year to 5 years, but may have F-HEGR—KR—ZE0F
extension options as described in (v) below. Addition to right-of-use B [E € BARR - B %Jﬂﬁ/_\ Al &
assets during the year were approximately HK$3,522,000. EEENEERE RTX(V)

RNIEE NEFEEZFEREEE
1 HN149 /4 3,522,000 75 7T ©

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide FHARMAE RS Y BB
range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do T WEAEZSRRNIER
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in the RIEH - REAARSRES
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Certain leased assets may EEAERREALN e
not be used as security for borrowing purposes. TELMBERLIES - =F/H

EEETSREERER -

(iv) Variable lease payments

(iv) TEBEENZ

Leases of the Group do not contain variable payment terms that are AEE RS RO HE—
linked to an index or a rate. Y B ok KA B Y A 2
fERIR -
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EE R I ERARMIEE

|7 LEASES (Continued) 17 H&E @
(v) Extension and termination options (v) ZERRHILEER
Extension and termination options are included in a number of EREEIDEZERRNAREE
property leases across the Group. These options are used to ZHEMERKREEE - ZFE
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used EREREEAETEASEEY
in the Group's operations. The extension and termination options FrRZEEZREEEMN - AT
held, if any, are exercisable only by the Group and not by the RERREIDEEE(WA)E
respective lessor. AIEHAKETE - miaE LA
ARAIITEE o
(vi) Residual value guarantees (vi) FIEFEEER
The Group did not provide residual value guarantees in relation to REBE-Z-_ZFA=1+H
leases during the year ended 30th June 2020 (2019: same). EFE AEEYEGHEE
RHUFNHKEEER(ZZT -1
F MR -
I8 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REWE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THIT
At beginning of the year F9) 159,973 141,380
Fair value (losses)/gains on REMEZ AAEE
investment properties (Note 7) (B8) Max=(KizE7) (3,564) 16,009
Transfer from property, mE - BERREEA
plant and equipment (Note |5) (B$5E15) — 2,698
Transfer from leasehold land TE TH 2 1 AR A
and land use rights (Note 16) (PE 16) = 1,052
Currency translation differences ME 5 = (1,117) (1,166)
At end of the year FAR 155,292 159,973
As at 30th June 2020, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligation HEZZ-TFA=+H &%
for future repair and maintenance (2019: Nil). EEpE - T HRENRERBEHD

BREHK(ZT—NF : £)
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BRI

IIF

18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

)

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was
performed by the valuer, Chung, Chan & Associates, to determine
the fair value of the investment properties as at 30th June 2020 and
2019. The revaluation gains or losses are included in “other (losses)/
gains, net” (Note 7) in the consolidated income statement. The
following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair

value, by valuation method.

(@)

18 REME &)

RAEEZREE

AEBEHREMERBEMNE
BTR-ZE_ZFN_Z—-N
FRA=ZTBERITHILMGE
NEBEEAREE- Efhka
SERBEERFA REROHE
fl (B5 18 ) /W e — 5 %8 | o (P
E7) c TRMABEESITIZ
RIEEARNREDE -

Fair value measurements at
30th June using significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3)

RAA=+BERAEANTT
BEB AL A EEHE

(£38)
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TATT
Recurring fair value measurements KEMANBETE
Investment properties: REWE
— Industrial building units - Hong Kong —IEREBN—FHE 125,290 127,600
— Car park units - Hong Kong —fEBE—FE 3,150 3,180
— Commercial office units and —HENAEEAM
apartment — Mainland China —HEAH 10,744 11,808
— Industrial building units - Mainland China —ITEKRESM
—FER 16,108 17,385
155,292 159,973
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers in/(out) of fair AEEBBER BRGNS L
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in EHRIBERANENBE  BR

circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfer between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the year.

The following table presents the changes in investment properties

with fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3) for the years ended 30th June 2020 and 2019.
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EE R I ERARMIEE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REME &)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) RAEEZREE)
2020
Mainland China Hong Kong Total
A 3t 5k B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET THET THET
Opening balance Hif AR 29,193 130,780 159,973
Net loss from fair value adjustment A S{EE A B KR FEE (1,224) (2,340) (3,564)
Currency translation differences i i, = 58 (1,117) — (1,117)
Closing balance HiiR ek 26,852 128,440 155,292

Total losses for the year included in  F AUz A% + BIEE
the consolidated income statement, 4R & WK HY

under other losses, net [ EfhEE —F8E P (1,224) (2,340) (3,564)
2019

Mainland China Hong Kong Total

B A B mE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FET FHET

Opening balance H ¥4 0 25,650 115,730 141,380
Transfer from property, ME - BEREHEEA

plant and equipment 2,698 — 2,698

Transfer from leasehold land HAELH M

and land use rights TR AEEA 1,052 = 1,052

Net gain from fair value adjustment 2 7 fE{E FH W 25 F 58 959 15,050 16,009

Currency translation differences EHER (1,166) = (1,166)

Closing balance H R st 00 29,193 130,780 159,973

Total gains for the year included in ~ F R BT - BIEE
the consolidated income statement, 4R & Y25 & #J
under other gains, net [ EfhYas — %58 |H 959 15,050 16,009
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BRI

IIF

18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b)

Valuation process of the Group

The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$155,292,000 (2019: HK$159,973,000) as at 30th June
2020 and 2019 by Chung, Chan & Associates, an independent
professionally qualified valuer who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the locations
and segments of the investment properties valued. Certain of the
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
lease arrangements, further summary details of which are included in

Note |8(e) to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed
by the independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The
finance department reports directly to the CODM. Discussions
of valuation processes and results are held between the CODM,

finance department and the independent valuer annually.

At each financial year end the finance department:

. Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

. Assesses property valuations movements when compared to
the prior year valuation report; and
O Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date

between the CODM, finance team and the independent valuer.
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REY=R#A)
(c) Valuation techniques (c) 1WEERM
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs MAEARM T B R AEDL
R EEFE
Fair values of investment properties of the Group are generally AEBNEEMERALBE—
determined using the income capitalisation method which largely MBI S EEE - LA E
involves the use of unobservable inputs and taking into account ZHATAEEHA - WERE
the significant adjustments on passing rentals of the current leases EREHENEFEEEEE
and capitalisation rates including the outgoings (“Yields™). These HEARXHBERLELER(ESR
significant unobservable inputs include: EONERRAE - LEEBRR
AERBARE
Fair value at
30th June Relationship of
2020 unobservable inputs
R=B=%f Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs TABRBA
i ZRAEE fhER FUBEE A TUBEHAEE HRABENBE
HK$'000
TR
Industrial building units — Hong Kong 125,290 Income  Unit passing rents HK$9.32 - HK$1 1.66 The higher the rental value,
I5AEEN-FH capitalisation EAOREME  per month per square feet the higher the fair value,
method §YARGAINBT and vice versa
sk Ellecitn  MESR ALEEDSR:
RZ A
Yields 271% - 350% The higher the Yields,
8% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa

ZR%HR - AAEEME-

RZ TR

Car park units - Hong Kong 3,150 Income  Unit passing rents HK$6,000 - HK$9,225 The higher the rental value,
FEf-F% capitalisation B RRRE per month per unit the higher the fair value,
method BEfIFA 60008 T and vice versa

Wk 2nsEn BEER AAEEER

Rz A

Yields 6.90% - 9.16% The higher the Yields,

ZE% the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
ZERPR  AREBUE -

R
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Valuation techniques (Continued)

18 REWX )
(c) fAEHAM (4)

Fair value at
30th June Relationship of
2020 unobservable inputs
RZZ-Z2F Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~AB=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs 0k -E3-DN
i ZRAEE fBERH  FIRRBA FUBRERAKE HAABEENRE
HK$'000
Tén
Commercial office units and 10,744 Income  Unit passing rents RMB61.74 - RMB65.2 The higher the rental value,
apartment — Mainland China capitalisation BAIRKHE per month per square meter the higher the fair value,
BERAZEN —RERY method FYIREA and vice versa
Iz 6174- 652l AR TBEMR ARBEES-
RZ A
Yields 290% - 3.45% The higher the Yields,
ZE% the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
EREHE  AMEEME
RZ TR
Industrial building units — Mainland China 16,108 Income  Unit passing rents RMB9.64 per month The higher the rental value,
TEXREEN BN capitalisation B RERE per square meter the higher the fair value,
method BYHKEA and vice versa
Wg % 94ARE  HEER AAEEES
RZ TR
Yield 8.00% The higher the Yield,
L4k the lower the fair value,
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REWE#)
(c) Valuation techniques (Continued) (c) 1EEHM (&)

Fair value at

30th June Relationship of

2019 unobservable inputs

RZZE-NF Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value

Description ~NA=TA technique inputs unobservable inputs THBREHA

Hit ZDREE fhER RABREA FBRHAEE HAREENER
HK$'000
TAT

Industrial building units - Hong Kong 127,600 Income  Unit passing rents HK$9.03 - HK$! 1.19 The higher the rental value,

IEREEf &S capitalisation BAIRKHE  per month per square feet the higher the fair value,

method SYARGAI0IBT and vice versa

&% ZlLI9ET  BEER ArBEEES-

Rz A

Yields 2.63% - 3.28% The higher the Yields,

ZE X the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
ZEXRYE  AABEME -

R
Car park units - Hong Kong 3,180 Income  Unit passing rents HK$5,000 - HK$8,475 The higher the rental value,
[FEf-F# capitalisation B RKRAE per month per unit the higher the fair value,
method BELFAS000ET and vice versa
Yk 2e475m  MERR AABEELR:
RZTA
Yields 5.82% - 8.78% The higher the Yields,
BEX the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
ZERPE  AABEME
SN
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c) Valuation techniques (Continued)

18 REWX )
(c) fAEHAM (4)

Fair value at
30th June Relationship of
2019 unobservable inputs
RZZ-N%§ Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~NA=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs THBREHA
ft ZRREE fBERT  AUBERGA TIBRBARE HRREENBR
HK$'000
TEL
Commercial office units and 11,808 Income  Unit passing rents RMB61.74 - RMB65.2 The higher the rental value,
apartment — Mainland China capitalisation  EBAUFREAR(E per month per square meter the higher the fair value,
BERAZEN —PERY method BYHABA and vice versa
Wi 61.74- 6521 \NRR  BEES AREEES
RZ IR
Yields 274% - 327% The higher the Yields,
ZE X the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
ZRXHR - AREEME-
RZTA
Industrial building units — Mainland China 17,385 Income ~ Unit passing rents RMB9.64 per month The higher the rental value,
TEXREEN-FEN capitalisation  EMRKHE per square meter the higher the fair value,
method BYAAEA and vice versa
Wg % 94ARE  HEES AAEEER
RZ TR
Yield 7.89% The higher the Yield,
8% the lower the fair value,

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(d) As at 30th June 2020, the fair value of investment properties

pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to
approximately HK$39, 163,000 (2019: HK$39,885,000).

(e) The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

RS B IS ER AR B EE

18 REME(#®)
(d RZZEZZTFSA=1+H %
& W) % AR E F B 49 39,163,000
B (ZZ — L4 : 39,885,000
BIT)EERTRT  BREAE
EERSHRITEE -

(e) WRETAMENEERE K
R EEWHEREMT

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Not later than | year —FR 5,436 6,230

Later than | year and not later than 5 years —FRENERAF 6,686 [1,051
12,122 17,281

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 BIEEE

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET TAET

Technical know-how B 9l5 H B

Cost DN 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation Rt (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment REHRE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount BREFE — —

During the years ended 30th June 2020 and 2019, the Directors assessed
the recoverability of the technical know-how and considered that the
carrying value of the technical know-how cannot be recovered through its

future use and full provision was made.

REBE_ZT-_ZER_FT-NFXA
Z“+HIEFER  EEC WM
Mz T WEEBELRAEKEE
N EERRERFHE - BitH
EL 25 RE -
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20

21
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FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

20 BAAEFARMBEE

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (“FVOCI”) W B & E
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT
Financial asset at FVOCI: BARBEFAHEMEZE K E
MBI EE -
Equity securities, unlisted FELTES 1,863 1,677

Financial asset at FVOCI represents a 3.6% (2019: 3.6%) equity interest in
an unlisted company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount

is denominated in HK dollar.

SUBSIDIARIES

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2020 are disclosed
in Note 35.

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 30th June 2020 was HK$25, 199,000
(2019: HK$23,874,000), of which HK$25,250,000 (2019: HK$23,968,000)
was attributable to Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics Materials Limited
(“NHEPML™). The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiaries

were not material.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank deposits of NHEPML of RMB10,393,000 (2019:
RMB2,263,000), equivalent to approximately HK$ 11,359,000 (2019:
HK$2,572,000), were held in Mainland China and were subject to local
exchange control regulations. These local exchange control regulations
provided for restrictions on exporting capital from the region, other
than through normal dividends or remittance of revenue income through

import/export companies.

Report FE#HE

21

BAREFARMEERENTB
BERRNERABERRFS M
ZIELETRAZASZ=EN(ZE
—NE: BOZZEN ) o bt
BB TRENL -

V=G
Eé—?—?i/\ﬁ +E|EIJEE$ZMT
BRRIMFBRKIFEISHE -

B ARy F

RZE_ZEFNA=1+HHIEE
ol 4 3= 48 B8 A 25,199,000 7% ﬁ(:
T — fL 4 : 23,874,0005 JT ) -
EF‘ZS,ZSO,OOO/E T(ZZE — AN ¢ :
23,968,000 7T ) B HY %% H T 72 #J%ﬂr
ERAF([FHETIREBE]) - HHE
bt BN 7B B e FEIE d i I N E
j( o

EARS

FETREBRONRAS REITHE
K 10,393,000A & (= T — N
F:226300A B ®& )(F E 4
11,359,000 7T(= T — A F:
2,572,000 7T ) ) 77 BUEE R B A HE -
XEMBINEE BIFTRE o ILEIN
E*A%\JIZE%IJH‘”,&%E&#%WL
WIFFE RN REMBELDQAES
Wezs RIBRAI) o
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-

controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for the subsidiary

that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

21

EE R I ERARMIEE

Ft B A =) (&)

EARHE RS (F

A B EA TSRS BB R FHY
HEEHEH

LA B 4 B 28 A 9 4 4
HHMBATIMEERIEER -

Summarised balance sheet BELEEREX
NHEPML
RETRBER
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Current mE
Assets BE 89,237 96,123
Liabilities afE (29,007) (42,272)
Current net assets FREEE 60,230 53,851
Non-current IERE
Assets BE 44,096 47,066
Liabilities af& (995) (207)
Non-current net assets FHIERBBEE 43,101 46,859
Net assets FEE 103,331 100,710
EET IR 25,250 23,968

Accumulated non-controlling interests
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

21 MIB AT (&)
EABGHIEH R ()

Summarised income statement and statement of comprehensive income HE W K e s &
NHEPML

REIRER
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TAET
Revenue e 179,159 217,943
Profit before income tax B 56 AT A 19,545 16,770
Income tax expense MIEX (3,218) (2,208)
Post-tax profit B 25 12 % A 16,327 14,562
Other comprehensive income HAhsr & Ias (1,286) (1,386)
Total comprehensive income REWSEEE 15,041 13,176

Total comprehensive income allocated to FRERRAER

non-controlling interests NE T 3,491 3,136
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest FRANSIEE - Eaid i ¥ (3,189) (5,093)
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HE MR
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21 KR )
Material non-controlling interests (Continued) BEARHZEFIRER(
Summarised cash flows WEH e B X
NHEPML
REIRER
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBHER
Cash generated from operations REXBEEZRS 43,217 29,750
Income tax paid PS5 (3,269) (1,261)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBEEZFRE 39,948 28,489
Net cash used in investing activities REXBHERZEFRE (3,495) (5,057)
Net cash used in from financing activities BEEBAERZFRE (25,416) (17,342)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRESESHEZEM 11,037 6,090
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FHzR& KRS EHE 7,314 1,424
Currency translation differences b H ZRE (99) (200)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZEeRB SR 18,252 7314

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.

A EER RETE R B SH AR

B o
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22 INVENTORIES 22 78
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trading stocks BHREBFE 196,842 206,359
Raw materials [k 65,318 74,855
Finished goods P 30,644 38,037
292,804 319,251

23

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of
sales in the consolidated income statement amounted to approximately
HK$1,310,278,000 (2019: HK$1,562,175,000).

Provision for impairment of inventories amounted to HK$3,142,000
(2019: HK$4,884,000) for the year was included in cost of sales in the

consolidated income statement.

R ERE W a & A B AR A PO R
RERIZFEEXREREHO A
1,310,278,000% ;m(= & — N & :
1,562,175,0007% 7T ) °

7N & B R F E A 3,142,000% T
(ZZF—NF : 48840008 L) 217
ERBEEFEDE  URKRERER
ANHER AR AR ©

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23 ESREWERERERS
2020 2019
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FA&TT
Trade receivables Z SRR 175,944 217,103
Less: loss allowance W FEWGEORE R (4,797) (4,760)
171,147 212,343
Bills receivables & IR 24,098 22,103
195,245 234,446
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23 BEZEVURRERERS @
The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following BEHRWTOEREATIEER
currencies: By :

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TETT
HK$ BT 42,546 70,042
RMB AR 109,515 113417
usD e 23,883 33,644
175,944 217,103
The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values. BEHRWRZ EEEERERAREE
A o
There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables HRAEBHEBEAECEFE
as the Group has a large number of customers. NESRKRFITE|BEERNERZ
[\ o
The majority of the Group's sales were made with credit terms of 30 to 90 AEEBAHHEENEERR=T
days. The remaining amounts are on letter of credit or bank’s acceptance ZNTH - ERUERAMRSRITE
bill. SERTTAETT -
Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are BUREECHBHEXTELS—ANT
denominated in the following currencies: BA - WATIEEREL :
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT THET
HK$ BT — 1,843
usD XL 1,078 3904
RMB AR 23,020 16,356
24,098 22,103

BUREzEEERZENAEER
#0 B BT I R B W SR AR 2 R A8 o

The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and

there is no recent history of default on bills receivable.
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bank's acceptance
bills amounting to approximately HK$16,584,000 (2019: HK$10,660,000)
with recourse in exchange for cash as at 30th June 2020. The transactions

have been accounted for as collateralised bank advances (Note 29).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is
the carrying values of the receivables (2019: same). Other than the bank's
acceptance bills collateralised as bank advances, the Group does not hold

any collateral as security.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 30th June 2020, the Group had three (2019: one) outstanding
forward foreign exchange contracts of HK$ 1,246,000 (2019: HK$74,000)
mainly to purchase USD (2019: purchase USD). The maximum notional
principal amount of the outstanding forward foreign exchange contract at

30th June was as follows:

23

24

BEZRURKREVEE @)

R-ZE_ZFXNA=ZTHAEEZ
BB A B 5 #9 16,584,000 8 L (=&
— L& 1 10,660,000 78 7T ) B8R 17 &
HEZGIR FHRTUBRIIRE - 4§
AR S E5 AERRRITER (K
F£29) o

AESERE iﬁﬁfﬂﬁl EI’JEEEFETE
—NEF MR - BREEE TR

TTLARERIR & MY SR1T AL B RS
AEETFHHETAEREANTER

DEl’]o

fTE€mMI A
m—7—7ﬂ5/\ﬂ +E| KEI
=BG ZZE—h&E: —H)HE
1,246,000 70( = Z — L4F : 74,000

BIL) X RRRWSMNEEREHEZ A
BEXn(ZF—NA&E: BEXn)-R»
NAZTBRFERRPINERA
MZRBREASELOT ¢

2020 2019

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FET

Sell HK$ for USD SHEBTUNEAZETT 507,000 156,000
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25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 25 RERMITEER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents () REREELZEH
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TAET
Cash on hand RS ER 621 587
Bank balances RITAEER 125,473 93,014
126,094 93,601
Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies: ReRRITEHRUTIEE R
B
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
HK$ BT 9,653 8,929
RMB ARE 87,852 67,111
usD ==L 28,422 17,387
Others Hity 167 174
126,094 93,601
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank MITHEBRBBEEARITFERZ
deposit rates. JF BN EBRERA S o
The Group's cash and bank balances of HK$94,546,000 (2019: AEBE RS RBTHEBE
HK$69,085,000) are deposited with banks in Mainland China. 94,546,000 (= F— L4 -
The remittance of these funds out of Mainland China is subject 69,085,000 7 7T ) B H Bl A i 2
to the exchange control restrictions imposed by Mainland China RITHET - BEBEESEDLF
government. B 3 & 52 R A R B A 3 T

B2 SNEE BRI ©
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25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

(b) Restricted bank deposits
As at 30th June 2020, RMB31,932,000 (equivalent to
HK$34,898,000) (2019: RMB30,919,000 (equivalent to
HK$35,135,000)) are restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for
serving of debt for revolving loans provided by the bank (Note 29).
The restricted bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 1.75% (2019:
|.75%) per annum with remaining maturity less than twelve months

after the balance sheet date.

26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables by invoice date is as

25

26

ReERBITHERE)

(b) ERFAMRITIEH
—E-TEXNAZ=TB.
31,932,000 A & ®(% B &
34,898,000 L ) (= & — L
& :30919,000A R ¥ (& &
#935,135,0007 78 ) ) & X BR
BIRITER - THRRIRITIER
RITREBRERNEERE
(BF5E29) - ZRFIHRITFERK
WRESFES 2 —BHEH(Z
E-NF:-BHhzz—HtH)
ZEEFE  WREEAMBERX
HEFIERER DR +=@A -

EZRANRREMNRE
HESmARRANERRREAL

follows: BRECDATAOT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Below 90 days 0-90 H 85,622 55,454
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 1,279 13
Over 180 days B 180 H 356 1,512
87,257 56,979

The carrying values of trade and bills payables approximate their fair

values, and are denominated in the following currencies:

BIRNFRRENRE 2 REER
HARBEMESE AURTINEES

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET T

HK$ BT — K
RMB AR 20,284 23,962
usD ETT 66,973 32,903
87,257 56,979
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 27 BARRAGE
Share capital KRR
Number of
ordinary Share
shares of capital
HK$0.10 each nominal value
SREE RAEE
0.10 T2 HK$’000
ZERHE FEx
Authorised: SEERA
At Ist July 2018, 30th June 2019, Ist July 2019 R=ZZE—-N\FELtH—H "
and 30th June 2020 —ET-NEARA=1+H-
—E-NFtHA—H
RZZE_FTF,A=1+H 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRBERE
At Ist July 2018, 30th June 2019, Ist July 2019 R=ZF—NFtH—A8 "
and 30th June 2020 —E-AFEARA=TH"
—E-hFtA—BX
—E-FTFAA=1H 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium R EE
HK$°000
FET
At st July 2018, 30th June 2019, Ist July 2019 RZE—-—N\ELH—A8 "
and 30th June 2020 —E-AEFEARA=FH"
—ET-hhFtA—BXK
—E-TFAA=1H 62,466
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28 RESERVES 28 f#fE
Other reserves
e
Financial
asset at
FVOC
reserve
Capital BAAEE Exchange
reserve SIAEM  fluctuation
(Note)  Revaluation 2 EMzH reserve Retained
BARE reserve HBEE EX Sub-total earnings Total
(M)  BfREE R RBEE P REER &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TER THET THET TET THET TR
At It July 2018 R=Z-/\FtA—H (2025) 7953 1310 50,710 57,948 351,609 409,557
Profit for the year KERH — - — — = 7,806 7,806
Currency translation differences ERER - - - (21,006) (21,006) - (21,006)
Acquisition of interest in THE R ENHB AR
a subsidiary without change ERIKE (M 36(0)
of control (Note 36(b)) (1,094) - - - (1,094) - (1,094)
Revaluation gain of property, n%  BERREEEZRE
plant and equipment on transfer EPARE EART
to investment properties - 1,687 - - 1,687 - 687
Fair value loss of financial BRRABEH AL M2 ENE
asset at FVOCI HBEELAABERR = = (233) = 233 = (233)
2017/2018 final dividend paid IRZE—t/ZE-\FE
RERE = = = = = (7,384) (7,384)
At 30th June 2019 RZE-NEXA=1H (3,119) 9,640 1077 29,704 37,302 352,03 389,333
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RS B IS ER AR B EE

28 fRfEE)

Other reserves

HibRE
Financial
asset at
FVOCI
reserve
Capital BAAER Exchange
reserve FIAEME  fluctuation
(Note) Revaluation 2HWEH reserve Retained
e reserve BBEE EX Sub-total earnings Total
(W) Bt e NERE Mt REER ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TiEx TiEn TR TER TiEn TiEn
At Ist July 2019 RZZ-NEF+tA-H (3,119) 9,640 1,077 29,704 37,302 352,031 389,333
Loss for the year KEER — — — — = (6.212) (6212
Currency translation differences EHEE - — - (17,319) (17,319) - (17,319)
Fair value gain of financial EAREEIGAEMZENE
asset at FVOC WHBAEL AAEERR — — 134 - 134 - 134
At 30th June 2020 RZZEZZE,A=1H (3,119 9,640 1,211 12,385 20,117 345,819 365,936
Notes: BT
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Capital reserve from reorganisation (note (a)) BAEEBEA () 408 408
Changes of interests in subsidiaries without TEBUR AT S AT B
change of control (note (b)) NEEREE (T ) (3,527) (3,527)
3,119) (3,119)
(@)  The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate amount of the (@ AEEZEREETDRIERRE

non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited and
the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the
Company in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1994 (the

“Reorganisation”).

The balance represents the net changes in capital reserve arising from the
change of interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

(b)

BRARZ ELREEER D #E
ER—NAAFERRBRBEEEE
A(TEA D PET ZRAEBERRZ
Gt = PN ol N Rk
MEZZH -

BRI EAMBARERESE
(PREEGIE)REENE AR
1 e
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29 BANK BORROWINGS

29 BITHEE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Bank loans due for repayment within FR—FAEEZRITERK
one year - secured (Note 3.1(e)) —BHEA LS. 1 (e)) 106,080 126,094
Trust receipt loans due for repayment within FER—FABEZEFE
one year - secured (Note 3.1 (e)) WIRE R —
BEA(FES3. |(e)) 242,713 270,223
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 23) RITARER RIR BN 16,584 10,660
365,377 406,977
The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their AEBEREZREAERAQAABE
fair values as the impact of discounting is not significant. The Group’s HE - WA TRIEE BB
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TR
HK$ 7BTT 139,961 247,197
RMB ARE 79,826 75,612
usD e 145,590 84,168
365,377 406,977
At 30th June 2020 and 2019, the Group's borrowings are repayable as RZZEZZEFRZZT—-NFRA
follows: =+H AEBEEEZEEESRE
LI
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Within | year —FRX 365,377 406,977
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29 BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the

weighted average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:

RS B IS ER AR B EE

29 HRITEE#E)

REERERAAEEY ERYF
FRBHARRIETHRIENT :

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

TExT TFET

— at fixed rates — [&E E FI = 365,377 390,944

— at floating rates —FBHI= — 16,033

365,377 406,977

2020 2019

HK$ RMB usD HK$ RMB usD

B AR Ev Br ARE ETT

Trust receipt loans IR E 3.34%  4.50% 2.35% 4.11% 6.02% 4.49%

Short-term bank loans D HRIRITE R 2.31% 5.69% — 4.10% 5.74% —

Bank overdrafts RITHEX — — — - - -
Bank advances for SRITRRIR IR AR

discounted bills — 3.00% — — 3.81% —

Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment
(Note 15), leasehold land and land use rights (Notes 16 and |7),
investment properties (Note [8) and restricted bank deposits (Note 25
(b)) of the Group.

Bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted
for as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bank’s acceptance
bills and the related proceeds of the same amount are included in the
Group's trade and bills receivables (Note 23) and short-term borrowings

respectively at the end of the reporting period.

RITERUREB D OWE - K
B REE(MEIS)  HELkt
HE M6 17) REWE
(PfTE 18) R PR Il A9 R 1T 17 5k (Bd 5
25(b)) BEH -

e e REZ R ZBWAR TR
PRERITRERE J R EMCAVIRTT
BRREERABRAMLFHAR
THRAEZERBBZRABEMER
DRABERERASEZE 5 ERRK
FEUE IR (5T 23) RAEHEE -
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current
income tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same taxation authority. The following amounts, determined after

appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

30 EIERIIE
EHEEEARTENERERIEEL
ERBAHBEAGERY  BBEEMH
BE S RE — B - BT R
THEHEERGBEAEN - &
SAEEEEE TW BREEA

BEABRAYE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F#E T
Deferred income tax assets BEEFIAE E 13,841 10,018
Deferred income tax liabilities REFIEAE (6,559) (6,723)
7,282 3,295

The net movement on the deferred income tax is as follows:

BRIETEHMSHARE RS T ¢

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAET

At beginning of the year, as previously reported FH(ERTZH) 32508 580
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 £ W%.S BB & A

FIRMTE — 90

At beginning of the year, as restated F(&E5)) 3,295 670

Credited to consolidated income statement EFRE KRR A

(Note 10) (BEE10) 4,073 3,224

Charged to other comprehensive income TEE 2 E WS bR — (627)

Currency translation differences b X =5 (86) 28

At end of the year FR 7,282 3,295

Report FE#HE



30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the

year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the

same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
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A B ISR R A EE
30 EFEFLIE (4%)

FRREERBEENR BB 228 (H
Rl — AR 2 S BRI SHRT ) AT

Fair value gains on Accelerated tax

Deferred income tax liabilities: investment properties depreciation Total
BEHIHEEE RENEAAEBERE NEHBHRE B
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKF000
TEx TAET TFER TET FErR TER
At beginning of the year F1 2,236 ,440 5,920 6,578 8,156 8,018
(Credited)/charged to FEiralamR
consolidated income statement  (FFA),/Nk: (404) 234 (59) (456) (463) (222)
Charged to other TEH At 2 E s bR
comprehensive income — 627 — — — 627
Currency translation differences [ Z %8 (85) (65) (139) (202) (224) (267)
At end of the year FR 1,747 2,236 5,722 5920 7,469 8,156
Decelerated tax
Deferred income tax assets: Provisions Tax losses depreciation Total
BEHEEE f REER BERBINE ag
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000
TEx ThEn TEx TiEn TEx TEx TEr TiEx
At beginning of the year, EY) (mEp2H)
as previously reported 6,411 5585 2,522 616 2,518 2397 11,451 8,598
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 9 HMAABHBR & ERIE9H
e - 90 - - - - - 90
At beginning of the year, as restated 4] (ZE5) 6,411 5675 2,522 616 2518 2397 11451 8,688
Credited/(charged) to consolidated A MERA/ (F1B)
income statement [,564 887 2210 1913 (164) 202 3,610 3,002
Currency translation differences B ZH (168) (151 (75) ) (67) @) (310) (239)
At end of the year EX 7,807 6411 4,657 2522 2,287 2518 14751 [1451
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30

Annual
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BRI

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward
to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. At 30th June 2020, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses to be carried forward against future taxable income amounted
to approximately HK$316,007,000 (2019: HK$292,950,000). These tax
losses have no expiry date except that approximately HK$ ! 1,635,000
(2019: HK$10,104,000) will expire from 2021 to 2025 (2019: 2020 to
2024). The potential deferred income tax assets in respect of these tax
losses which have not been recognised amounted to approximately
HK$53,130,000 (2019: HK$49,196,000).

As at 30th June 2020, deferred income tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to unremitted profits earned by certain Mainland subsidiaries
of the Group amounting to approximately HK$303,734,000 (2019:
HK$276,599,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Report FE#HE

30

IE FE B IE (47)
B 45 2 A B A S 18 T T SR RO IR AT P
SHEEERRNEBZIMBEHN R
Tﬁﬁéﬁiﬁﬂiwﬁéﬁ}é%%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ
DM _BE_FTFA=ZFTH" &K
5 B 30 4% Bt AT 45 83 LUK 8 oK R B AR
T U 25 19 4 7% B5 18 49 316,007,000 78
TT(=Z — A4 292,950,000/ 7T )
T R R XE BT 45 B & 2 953,130,000
BT (Z F — A& £ 49,196,000 %
T)e AT —FFE=-F_-F
F(ZE—NF: ZFTZZF=E
TN HNBEEERD
A11,635000% t(=Z T — N F:
10,104,000/ 7T) °

R-ZE-_TFXA=Z1+8 X&EE
WTARETHFBERNBHMBEARZE
R R A B 3R g 1) £ 49 303,734,000 7%
(= Z — A5 : 276,599,000/ 7T )
ZEREBEERCHBEREE AN
SEAEFNZEEREBE 2 BER
M UERARZERZEERE
R 2 -
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31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 3] RERTRER
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash (a) BB A G R EEEEBEL
generated from operations: ZHREHE* -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TR
Profit before income tax TR A 3,390 14,697
Adjustments for: FAEIEE
— Depreciation of property, plant % BEX
and equipment ZEIE 16,562 18,414
— Gain on disposal of property, —HEME  BEKR
plant and equipment R 2 W (72) (67)
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FRAEEENE 4,811 —
— Amortisation of leasehold land —HE TRt
and land use rights 1 PR 8 — 653
— Fair value losses on forward —SNEBRBIEHZDN
exchange contracts BEEE 1,172 74
— Fair value losses/(gains) on investment - REMENRAEE
properties BB (Wa) 3,564 (16,009)
— Loss allowance on trade receivables — B RURE B E 2,002 126
— Provision for impairment of inventories, net — 17 &R E%EE — F5E 3,142 4,884
— Interest income —FEHA (1,109) (1,043)
— Interest expense —FMEZH 17,382 17,013
Changes in working capital: EEESHE -
— Inventories —FE 14,741 (38,999)
— Trade and bills receivables, other —BH R R ER -
receivables, prepayments and deposits FSREAMEKR -
BN RERE 22,161 30,947
— Trade and bills payables, other — B I ENRRER
payables, deposits received and accruals 8B HEIRE
BRET e RTEREA 33,511 (38,973)
Cash generated/(used in) from operations KEERES (FR)
ZHE 121,257 (8,283)
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e IEERRMGE
31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 3] REBEERERE)
(Continued)

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
sales of property, plant and equipment comprise:

(b) EHEREREBXZA HE
W¥ - BERREHRH

i -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAET
Net book amount (Note |5) BREDFE(MI5E 15) 6l 65
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME. BE KK

and equipment (Note 8) ZWeas (HMisE8) 72 67

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BER&E
plant and equipment SIECEN 133 132
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31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 31 &RE
(Continued)

BERERE)

(c) The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

() BEEHZRMEERBE*

activities is as follows:

/N

Bank borrowings Lease liabilities Total
BITHEE HE&E W
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THERT TR FTHERT
At IstJuly 2018 RZE—NELA—H 365,272 — 365,272
Cash flow AEm
~ Proceed from bank loans —¥ERITEK 518,634 — 518,634
— Repayment of bank loans ERIBITER (465/451) — (465,451)
— Increase in trust receipt loans —FFE MR E RO N (8,709) — (8,709)
Non-cash changes FHe#H
— Currency translation differences — BN =R (2,769) — (2,769)
At 30th June 2019 RZE-NAEX~A=+AH 406977 = 406,977
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2.2) BB BH15HE £
£ 163k (PEE22) — 7,366 7,366
At Ist July 2019 RZE-NFELA—H 406,977 7,366 414,343
Cash Flow BEn
— Proceed from bank loans %ﬂ*fﬁﬁfg%’\ 211,045 — 211,045
— Repayment of bank loans —BERTE (222,478) — (222,478)
— Decrease in trust receipt loans E%ELBUJ%E,TAH b (26,118) = (26,118)
— Repayment of lease liabilities —-BEHEAE — (3,869) (3,869)
Non-cash changes FReE
— Addition of lease liabilities HE&EEM — 3,522 3,522
— Currency translation differences ~ —[E X Z %8 (4,049) — (4,049)
At 30th June 2020 RZZEZZTF A=A 365,377 7,019 372,396
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32 COMMITMENTS

(3)

(b)

Capital commitments

At 30th June 2020, the Group had the following capital commitments
for addition of property, plant and equipment:

32 EiE
(a) BEXERE
RZEZZFEFA=+H ' &
EEEMRYE BERREZ

BAAENT -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT TET
Contracted but not provided for B2 418 KRB G 3,629 1,221

Other commitments

On [5th June 2017, the Group entered into a non-cancellable
operating lease agreement with an agent of the Mainland China local
government authority to lease an industrial building premise for 5
years with a minimum lease payment of RMB8.5 per square meter.
During the non-cancellable lease period, the Group commits an
annual tax payment of RMB3,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,279,000), including the corporate income tax and value added
tax, from its business operation in the region to the Mainland China
local government authority. Any shortfall on the committed tax
payment would be paid in form of cash to the agent of the Mainland
China local government authority. The above lease commitments
only include commitments for basic rentals, and do not include
commitments for additional rentals payable, if any, when future tax
payment falls short of the pre-determined level as it is not possible

to determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated

in the British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares.

The remaining 46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of
the shares of Good Benefit Limited are beneficially owned by certain

Directors of the Company.
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(b) EftAME
R=ZE—tF~A+HB &
SER - IEAREREYE—
HR B ) 3 b 77 BROAT X B R
E-RHAFZTAREL
EHEAHN mEHEEAE
F K85 AR o A AT
HHESHERN AEES
RIEULH R 2 P L& W%
H B A b i 5 RS BB
B {K3,000000 A RE(EELD
3,279,000 7T ) 2 B IA (B HE 4
EMBREEER) - FAX
RREZAEBRETNESER
6] 5% P B0 70 b 3t 75 RS A B
B bz HERERS
BEAMRGEE TTBEE
RIRFHIE R FETER AT Z 5N
ERESFEEME)  BitE
BINEESREAREBEME -

33 BEEBALRS

A% B B Good Benefit Limited (£
EEABRRBEEEIMKIZAR])
TH o HEEARAR B ZA+T=
o BB 2T NE
THREASEZEA ° Good Benefit
Limited BE E KE o B A QA
ZEDEZEREE °
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the
Group and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note |5

to the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Transactions with related parties

In addition to those disclosed in Note |4 to the consolidated

financial statements, the following transactions were carried out with

EE R I ERARMIEE

A LR F ()

RARFTBESHRBAARNEEZ
BEEEEAE  HEMAFHE XL
A SRR AE 15 E -

(a) HEBALTHXEZ
Bira B MR 14T E
O - EREAEE AN THITHIRZ S

related parties: T
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TET
Lease payment/operating lease expense XAt T R AL
to related parties: Z ENEERE,
HEHES
— Build Fair Limited (Note (i)) —=BEAERAR(MEG) 1,074 1,080
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —AREBRHERAE
Company Limited (Note (ii)) GEADY) 1,013 973
— Mr. HUI Sai Chung — AR A 176 —
2,263 2,053
Interest expense to related parties: TRAEEA T 2B
— Build Fair Limited (Note (i)) —=BEARAF (M) 28 =
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —ARERBRHABRAAE
Company Limited (Note (ii)) GEADY 42 =
— Mr. HUI Sai Chung —FFEERSEAE 25 —
95 —
Addition of right-of-use assets: R EEEN
— Build Fair Limited (Note (i) —=EERAF(MEFEG) 2,024 =
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —BRZBRHBRAA
Company Limited (Note (ii)) GEIDY) 665 —
— Mr. HUI Sai Chung — ATt ERE A 833 —
3,522 —
Notes: MiaE -

() Build Fair Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr. HUI Sai Chung, a

Director of the Company.

(i) Shine Systems Plastic Materials Company Limited is a company wholly

owned by Mr. HUI Kwok Kwong, a Director of the Company.

Lease payment made to related parties are on mutually agreed basis.

() EBERATNRAANEF
FH B2 RS o

iy, BARZRBREBRARHR
RAERTEKREELER
g o

AT RAEEA TR B E R
RIS TR EEREI

Annual Report  FE# &
19720

187



NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E17H R A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR B IS ER AR B X

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Year-end balance arising from related party transactions

33 BBALRZ #®)
(b) BIBANLXZEREGHE

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TET
Lease labilities to related parties: THBALZHERE

— Build Fair Limited —RBBERAA 1,860 —

— Shine Systems Plastic Materials —BRZBREHMERAA
Company Limited 991 —
— Mr. HUI Sai Chung — ATt ER A 681 =
BASED) —

34 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in

the British Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2020:

34 RARERAT
EERBARAZHEZERAA A
Good Benefit Limited (£ 3 B8 # B =
BEAMKIZZAT]) o

35 FENEQF
R-Z-BEXA=+8 A2F
ZEERBARIT :

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name MRS i ERITRAR Principal activities ZAARFEZ
=1 R+ EANER RA,EMEX IEXRK BEBRRFEIH
Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100
Company Limited HEERRES e REER
(Note b) (ff&Eb)
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic ~ Mainland China HK$93,200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Limited *wholly foreign-owned 93,200,000 47T colorants and

RERAZBRHNERDA
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
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The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2020:

35 FEMEQT (&)

RS B IS ER AR B EE

B

R-F-FEXA=+R " AR7F

(Continued) ZEEWBARMT : ()
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name SR LS 2 ERTRER Principal activities ZAAFFEZ
=1 R EANER RA,EER TEXK BEBRREFEIL
Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary Manufacture and trading of 100
Technology Limited B shares of HK$ | each colorants and compounded
HAEEEFRAF 500,000 R T AR E(E plastic resins
| BTLZ BB BLERBEBEEEER
EEa KR
Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary Manufacture of 76.2
Plastic Materials Limited N shares of HK$| each engineering plastic products
BARTREHARDA 2,000,000 B & X E E BETREBER
| BT BB
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary Investment holding and 100
Materials Limited B shares of HK$ | each property holding
REBBRHARAAF 1,000 fix & I E REZBREFANE
| BT BB
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$ ! each (Note c)
500,000 i B R E{E
| BT BRI
BT (P 5T o)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 ordinary Trading of plastic materials 100
Materials (Hong Kong) B shares of HK$ | each BEBRBRER
Limited 500,000 i Z R EE
REBBRH(FE) | BT BB
BRIA
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic Mainland China HK$34,400,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Company Limited *wholly foreign-owned 34,400,000 %8 7T colorants and compounded

BRI B R
ARAT

enterprise
B A
*EBELR

plastic resins
BUERHERERAR
B AR
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B

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 FEMEQT (&)
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2020: RZZEZZEFA=+H ' &~AFH

(Continued) ZEEWBARMT : ()
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name SEMRRR LS it B ERTRAR Principal activities ZAAFFEZ
=1 KB ANEE BRAEMEX FEXH BERRFEOL

Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Company Limited

EEREEB R
BRLIA

NHH Coltec Limited
REEEER QA

Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic (Shanghai)
Company Limited

BARTRPEH(LE)
BRAT

Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic Materials (Shanghai)
Company Limited
RITRER(LE)
BRAIE

Tsing Tao Ngai Hing

Trading Company Limited
EEREFEARAT

Annual Report  FE# &

Mainland China

*wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

B A

*SNEBELE

Hong Kong
BE

Mainland China

*wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

R A

*SNEBEDLE

Mainland China

*wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

B A

*EBELR

Mainland China

*wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

f B A

INERBELR

HK$ 10,500,000
10,500,000 7 7T

5,000 ordinary
shares of HK$ | each
5,000 REREE
| BTLZ BB

US$200,000
200,000 3% 7T

US$200,000
200,000 %7

US$ 100,000
100,000 T

Manufacture and sale of 100
colorants and compounded
plastic resins
BLENHEEERE R
==y gl

Manufacture and sale of 100

plastic products
BLENHERBEM

Trading of engineering p 76.2
lastic products

EETRZBEM

Manufacture of engineering 76.2
plastic products
SETIREBER

Trading of colorants and 100

compounded plastic resins

BEEECRAREBANKEE
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The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2020:
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RS B IS ER AR B EE

B

35 FEME AT (#)
R-BE-—TEAA=1+A A27

(Continued) ZEEWBARMT : ()
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name SRR EERTREZE Principal activities ZARARFEZ
=1 R+ EANER RA,EMEX IEXRK BERRAEIH
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary Trading of engineering 76.2
(Hong Kong) Limited B8 shares of HK$ | each plastic products
BETRIH(FR) 1,000,000 B & B E 1AL BEETREBER
ARRF | BT BB
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China US$ 1,200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Plastic Materials Company — *wholly foreign-owned 1,200,000 37T colorants and compounded
Limited enterprise plastic resins
EFRETEBRM B A3 BLENHEERERE R
ARARF *IEBELE ==y gl
Guangzhou Ngai Sog Hing Mainland China RMB 10,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Company Limited  *wholly foreign-owned 10,000,000 A R #& ETBRRE
BMNTREZEEZHRIDA  enterprise
B 3
*IEBELR
Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing Mainland China US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 400,000 37T BEEBRE
EEREEBBREEE enterprise
ARARF B At
*EBELR
NHH Biodegradable Plastics  Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Manufacture and sale of 100
Company Limited N shares of HK$| each biodegradable plastic materials
BRERRENBRAA 10,000 iz & A E (B BUERHERREB R
| BT BB
Ngai Hing Engineering Mainland China HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 76.2
Plastic (Dongguan) *wholly foreign-owned 8,000,000 7T plastic products

Company Limited
RERITIRZEMARAF

enterprise
B A
*EBELR

BEETREBEM
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 XEMBEAR @M@
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2020: RZBE_FTFR E‘f“ = NN
(Continued) ZEEWBARWMT : (&)
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name SRR EERTREZE Principal activities ZARARFEZ
=1 R E AR RA,EMEX IEXRK BERRAEIH
Shanghai Coltec Plastic Mainland China US$200,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 200,000 37T compounded plastic resins
LBEEBHESHERDA  enterprise BEERERECARERE
B A
*EBELR
Dongguan Coltec Plastic Mainland China HK$3,000,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 7T compounded plastic resins
RBAEBRES5ERAR  enterprise BEEEGHNECAKERE
B A
*EBELR
Tianjin Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Company Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 400,000 37T BEEBRE
RERBETHERRAT enterprise
B A
*SNEBELE
NHH Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary Investment holding 100
RETHREGRAA N shares of HK$ | each B
10,000 BB Ax I {E
| BT BB
Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong ~ Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Plastic Materials Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R & EZZRRE
B3R ETE BRE enterprise
BRAFE] B A3
*SEBELE
Chongging Ngai Hing Hong ~ Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Plastic Materials Limited ~ *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R #& BEEBRBRH

BEMRATERRMY
BRLDA

enterprise
A
*SEBELE
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2020:

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A
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RS B IS ER AR B EE

35 FEMEQT (&)

R-F-FEXA=+R " AR7F

(Continued) ZEEWBARMT : ()
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name SR LS 2 ERTRER Principal activities ZAAFFEZ
=1 BAEANER R EMEX TEXRK BEBRREFEIH
Shanghai Ngai Hing Hong Mainland China RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Plastic Materials Limited *wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R & ETBRBRH

EERETERRE enterprise
BRATA] B A3
*ONEHBEER
NHH Technology Hong Kong 2,000,000 ordinary
Company Limited B shares of HK$ | each
REMARAR 2,000,000 iR &A%
HfE BT
2B
Notes:
(a)  All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands

are limited liability companies. All subsidiaries established in Mainland China

are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held
by the Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held
by the Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic
Materials Limited (“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in
the profits or surplus assets of NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive
notice of or attend or vote at any general meeting of NHHPML in respect of
their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by
the holders of the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

Manufacture and sale

38.86

of personal care products

BEEEAZERm

GEE
@

(b)

(d)

BERERRRBERA ST
RIzMBRARABAEREER
Al o FrE R BRI 7 2 BB 2
R RINEFERE

FiA E5 2 = EH 8 A R B Ngai
Hing (International) Company
Limited A AR R EHEIFAIN - A
RRRIREEFA -

REBRBERAEROAN([3RE]) &
BREBEERN ZFEAEE2 A
BB RN KRR EED K > TR
RS E 5 E 2R AR BRI
RAREBERHFERARRAGH

RELRE-

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited IAIR & 4B 4 78 TR
SHELEROFAARLATEEZ
FR Ay 2 BERHE -

ERIHEERRYEAFEEER

KREEZESER A EEEEFE

ZEBBAZARRMBEARR - &

ERBNEINEAMME R B 215
SLEBNILE -
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36 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

()

(b)

Capital injection from a non-controlling shareholder

On [7th March 2020, NHEPML entered into an agreement with
a third party to incorporate NHH Technology Company Limited
(“NHHT"). NHEPML subscribed 1,020,000 shares of NHHT
at HK$ | each, representing 51% equity interest of NHHT. The
Group effectively owns 38.86% equity interest in NHHT upon the

completion of incoporation of NHHT.

Acquisition of additional interest in Richam Investments
Limited (“Richam”) and NHH Worldwide Logistics Limited
(“NHWL")

During the year ended 30th June 2019, the Group acquired 6%
of effective interest shareholding of Richam and 6% of effective
interest NHWL at a consideration of HK$ 1. The Group recognised
an increase in non-controlling interest of HK$1,094,000 and a
decrease in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$1,094,000. The effect of change in the ownership interest of
Richam and NHWL on the equity attributable to owners of the

Company during the year is summarised as follows:

36 BHRFEHFHUEZNRS

@)

(b)

FEEFIRRZEE
RZZE_ZTF3FI178  %E
TR = ER K
SR EBE AR QR (3R ER
Bl - REIEBRUSRI
75 7T 3R BE 3% B2 B £2 1,020,000
R BIREBEE S 2
E+—2ERER - RBRER
RER MR AL E A
BAEREMEES 2 =T NS
NN EBRREZ o

YW FERicham Investments
Limited ([ Richam[) R %% #&
REYRERL ([ ZKEY
) BEIME R
RBE_Z-—RLFEFA=T
HIEFER  XEBENRIET
ZREWEREYRAE D Z
TN B2 B B AN HE A 3 AN
1,094,000 7T B R AR
Bl P B & R 4 1,094,000
BT REYROABEERER
WESHHAFEANBBRAR
ATEENRRNTEREN
T

HK$'000

TET

Carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired BAJEIE IS AREE (1,094)
Consideration paid to non-controlling interest (HK$ 1) XAt T IERIERAEE( BT —
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity R M S E R D R R T R (1,094)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 30th June 2016, the Group received a claim from
a customer in respect of the sales of alleged defective goods with claim
amount approximately RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,464,000). On 7th May 2019, Wenling City People's Court of
Zhejiang Province (the “Court”) has made a judgement to invalidate the

claim.

During the year ended 30th June 2020, the customer had further
lodged a claim with amount approximately RMB5,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$5,464,000) in respect of originally closed claim
disclosed as above. The matter is currently being considered by the Court
after the first hearing on |3th May 2020.

Considering the current appeal is still in progress, the judgements from
the past appeals as well as the advice from its legal representative, the
Directors does not consider any provision in respect of the case to be

necessary.

37

RS B IS ER AR B EE

NBEAE

RBE-_ZT—XFA=THLHF
B AEEKI-—ZFRATBNT
A I E M e 1 495,000,000 A R
(5E#54640008 )RR - B
—T-NERALR T ARE
mARER (AR D BEEE #HRY
BB R o

REBE-E-_TFA=1+HLF
B ZEBEFPBRLLMRELERAH
R 12 I 495,000,000 A R B (E B L
5,464,000 8 TT)HBE AN =F
TEFERAT=ZANYBRLEESE
UL EIE -

ERIRE ERIDEETH - LR
ELHFMFARREZZBERZE
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fRE I R R EE
38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38 MITARER)
2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt ek FET FHIT
Financial assets - loans and receivables BKEE - BRREVR
Trade and bills receivables BSRWHRREWER 23 195,245 234,446
Other receivables and deposits Hitnf B RiZS 5,542 5,070
Restricted bank deposits S HIX B IRITIE K 25 34,898 35,135
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEHE 25 126,094 93,601
361,779 368,252
Financial asset at FVOCI BEAREAEFTAEMEZE
KB EE
Financial asset at FVOCI BASEBEFTAEAM
THBHENMBEE 20 1,863 1,677
Financial liabilities - fair value BREE-ERANER
through profit or loss ERERIR
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIA 24 1,246 74
Financial liabilities - other BEE-HuiyK
financial liabilities at amortised cost 818 BEBHERAK
Trade and bills payables BEHRNRRENEE 26 87,257 56,979
Other payables Hit B AR R EWET & 14,021 18,114
Lease liabilities HEAE 17 7,019 =
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 365,377 406,977
473,674 482,070
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RS B IS ER AR B EE

39 ARFENEERERKH

THE COMPANY wes
Balance sheet BESEX
2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BsE THET FHIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries I ENGIES S = 62,711 62,711
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries )= NGB 106,113 106,835
Other receivables H b pE UG R 115 228
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHER 84 109
106,312 107,172
Total assets HEE 169,023 169,883
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to DNEARREERER #EiE
the Company’s equity holders
Share capital [N 36,920 36,920
Share premium & A% (B 62,466 62,466
Other reserve HAth 39 (a) 62,511 62,511
Retained earnings RE R F 39 (a) 6,340 7,305
Total equity B 168,237 169,202
LIABILITY =N
Current liability REBAEE
Accruals TR E A 786 681
Total equity and liability BERREE 169,023 169,883

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of
Directors on 29th September 2020 and were signed on its behalf

ARRIMEERBERCHESFTERN
—TE-TFAA=-ThBME I

REEFERE

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

FRiEE FPEE

Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
1 B L/ERE FARAETE
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BRI

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet (Continued)

Note: (a) Reserve movement of the Company

39 ARFIMNEEEBERRR
HEE (#)
BEESGBF(E)

MI5E © (a) AR EREEE

Other reserve -

contributed

surplus (Note)

H s — Retained

BERZRHG earnings Total

(F=E) R EF Fk o

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET THERT FTHET

At Ist July 2018 RZZE—N\FEtHA—H 62,511 8,090 70,601
Profit for the year AR g A — 6,599 6,599

2017/18 final dividend paid XN=T—+/

—E-N\FERBRE = (7,384) (7,384)

At 30th June 2019 —E-NFARA=TH 62,511 7,305 69,816
At Ist July 2019 RZZ—hFtHA—H 62,511 7,305 69,816
Loss for the year REEE — (965) (965)
At 30th June 2020 RZEZTFA=1H 62,511 6,340 68,851

Note:

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at
the date on which the Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount
of the Company's shares issued under the Reorganisation. At Group level the
contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves of the underlying

subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable
to shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the
payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (ii) the realisable
value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

Report FE#HE

G

KRB ZEHEE © ThNgai Hing
(International) Company Limited A E 404
BAHZ AR RESBARNRREER
PRETZRNEEMEZEZR - AEEZ
ERBRDENBEABEMB AR ZHEHE
HEam -

REARE-NN—F28% B4R
BRA DK TR - BRIFEREERRAE
() A B K A B B s AR AT 3 IR 12 R
BERERBFEATBZAE () RA
BEZAVZBEBEESAMNEREAR
REBBEITRANERMDEEZBE " ]
FZARMNMFERIORT RSB HR
BAER DR
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nancial Summar y

EERBHE

Results

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Assets and liabilities
Total assets

Total liabilities
Non-controlling interests

Capital and reserves attributable to the 72 &A% 5 & {h J& A&

Company's equity holders

ES
NGl
(B18), % F 7,806 46,17 34430 (26/492)
EERER
BEMRE 1,019,873 1,049,595 953,013 847,339
BERE (507,280)  (515554) (469.816) (391,618)
FEPE R (23,874)  (24.826)  (23,065)  (20,384)
Kt 488719 509215 460,132 435337
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Schedule of Principal Properties

ERYRR

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

As at 30th June 2020 and 2019, the Group had the following investment
properties in Hong Kong and The People's Republic of China (“Mainland

China"):

As at 30th June 2020

REWE
RZBE_ER_ZF—NFNA=ZF+H ' &
EBFEAEUREBLRPEAN ZKEY

¥

R-B-ZFEFEXA=1+H

Category of Group’s
Usage lease term interest
AR HENSE AEBAER
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Floor, Factory Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory [EES R HA
ITXEAREEMN-FE Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units |, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7
and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on |lth
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [|2th Floor and Roof 3,
Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and
Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong
BB RD B AR AR EE9-155% RR & 10-16 5%
BIETEPL2EB4E  3B2E 6B7R8E - 812
8EF 1012345 6" 7TR8E - IIBIK
8E  2EB3IERKEBIM
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Industrial Medium 100%
units — Mainland China Zhen, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Mainland T H
THEREEM— China
hER URPEAMERERTEFRAREN ZITEX
E
Car park units — Car Parks 3, 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. Commercial Short [00%
Hong Kong 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, [EES k2 HA
BN BB Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BAEM AP B NRNIREEI-155 R AR 10-165%
BIET AL 14 R ISHEBA
Commercial office units ~ Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level, Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment — Modo Nanjing Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 [EES FHHA

Mainland China
PEERNEEN—
B A

Nanjing Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, Mainland China
b B PO b K2 TR R A [ R B 349 S MODO /M &R B
A RE 1611612 16131614+ 1615 1616

=
ES
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT (Continued)

As at 30th June 2019

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 3 #E1THR A A

Schedule of Principal Properties
EBVER

A

REWE (@)

R-BE—hEASA=1H

Category of Group’s
lease term interest
HEMIE AEEER
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Floor, Factory Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory [EES R HR
IXRAEEMN-FE Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory Units |, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7
and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8 on |lth
Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [2th Floor and Roof 3,
Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and
Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New
Territories, Hong Kong
BRI E N NKEES-155 KRB 10-165%
BETERL2BAE 3182F ¢B7R8E - 812
8BE - 1048123456 7TR8E IR
8% - 2IB3ERKRA3IR
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Industrial Medium 100%
units — Mainland China Zhen, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Mainland I et
ITEREEM- China
TR URPEAMEREREMEHFER BN ZTEX
E
Car park units — Car Parks 3, 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. Commercial Short 100%
Hong Kong 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, [HES 2 51
B —BB Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BRSSP E N NIKEEI-155 R ARBEH 10-165%
BIETEAL3 S 14 R ISHEFEL
Commercial office units ~ Units 1612, 1613, 1614, 1615 and 1616, 16th Level, Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment — Modo Nanjing Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 [EES AR

Mainland China
[EES NV
FR i

Nanjing Road, Nankai District, Tianjin, Mainland China
o B P9 2t 2K % T A [ AR B 349 SR MODO A R B
R K 16481612 16131614 16151616

ES
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Company Directory
DE)EmE

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
10 Wo Shing Street,

Fo Tan, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2693 1663

Fax: +852 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:
No. 9 Dai Shun Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2660 0208
Fax: +852 2667 4831

Dongguan Factory:

Chiling Industrial Zone, Houjie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 769 8558 8755

Zip: 523940

Fax: +86 (0) 769 8558 1756
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REEE 1057

BT ERNCEIE

B 0 +852 2693 1663

{EHE : +852 2694 0877

4L © http://www.nhh.com.hk
BFEFHAE : info@nhh.com.hk

BRI

B
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RNIBT %

PR NEHT 9 5%

TaE - +852 2660 0208
fE5 : +852 2667 483
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REEm

EEERET#R

BTk +86 (0) 769 8558 8755
BERAR SR © 523940
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Guangzhou Office:

A1806, Center Plaza,

No. 161 Linhe Road West,
Tianhe District,

Guangzhou,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 20 3831 0226
Zip: 510620

Fax: +86 (0) 20 3831 0223

Shanghai Office:

Unit E, |6th Floor,

Zhao Feng Universe Building,

No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road,
Shanghai,

The People's Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 21 6440 3351

Zip: 200235

Fax: +86 (0) 21 6440 0373

Shanghai Factory:

No. 8100, Songze Ave.

Qingpu Industrial Zone,
Shanghai,

The People's Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 21 6921 3333
Zip: 201707

Fax: +86 (0) 21 6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:

Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone,

Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao,

The People’s Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 532 8727 3100
Zip: 266300

Fax: +86 (0) 532 8727 3110

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED | 2 E1TH R A A
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BEMNHRER
hEARKFME

BT

R &

AR 161 5%

HR RIS E 5 A 1806

EEE © +86 (0) 20 3831 0226
FILARTE - 510620

fH : +86 (0) 20 3831 0223

EERER
REE A RFEFE
+HEm

R ILPEEE 1800 5%
LR KE

| 612 E B

TEE 1 +86 (0) 21 6440 3351
FEEARGR - 200235
fEH : +86 (0) 21 6440 0373

EiERgt

HREE AR HFE

Lgm

SHIXER

FAE KB 81005

TG 1 +86 (0) 21 6921 3333
T ARGE - 201707

fEH @ +86 (0) 21 6921 5555
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Chengdu Office:

Room 2919, Building B,

Longhu 3000 Constellations,

No. 2 Jianshe North Road Section 3,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province,
The People’s Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 28 8328 5026

Zip: 610051

Fax: +86 (0) 28 8328 5126

Xiamen Factory:

No.[6-4 Putou Road,

Haicang District,

Xiamen City, Fujian Province,
The People’s Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 592 609 321 |
Zip: 361027

Fax: +86 (0) 592 609 3600

Tianjin Office:

Units 2204-2206, Tower A, Ronghui Plaza,
Nankai District,

Tianjin,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 22 8752 8026

Zip: 300073

Fax: +86 (0) 22 8752 8109

Chongging Office:

Room 3601, Yingli International Financial Center,

No. 28 Minquan Road
Yuzhong District, Chongging,
The People’s Republic of China
Tel: +86 (0) 23 6382 0020
Zip: 400010

Fax: +86 (0) 23 6382 0090
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